TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

Board of Selectmen Agenda
April 14, 2022 @ 6:00 PM
Village Fire Station
32 North Street

This is an in-person meeting but the public may join in Zoom webinar format

Join by computer or mobile device and click on:_https://us06web.zoom.us/{/89675310510
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 896 7531 0510

By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US

International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kZ0upBfOf

1. Call to Order.

2. Approve the March 23, 2022, and March 24, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board
of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

4. Review and approve the proposed warrant articles for Town Meeting in June.

5. Consider request for Street Opening Permit and street lane closure on Ocean
Avenue.

6. Presentation Wastewater Budget.

7. Presentation of Recreation Special Revenue Budget.

8. Presentation of Cape Porpoise Pier Budget.

9. Review and consider Conflict of Interest Policy for ARPA Grant Funds.
10. Short-term rental update.

11. Update on well water tests along Beachwood Avenue.

12. Consider Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee recommendation regarding
landscaping, construction and maintenance vehicles parking on the street.

13. Consider the request from Maine Lobstermen’s Association for donation to support
MLA's Legal Defense Fund to Save Maine Lobstermen.

14. Consider request to purchase back tax acquired property at 133 Main Street.



15.

16.

17.

18.

Other Business.
Approve the April 14, 2022, Treasurer's Warrant.

Executive Session per MRSA 1, §405-6A to consider personnel matters.

Adjournment.



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 2

Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting VIA Zoom
March 23, 2022
6:00 PM

MINUTES

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, D. Michael Weston,
Edward Hutchins, and Sheila Matthews-Bull.

Others attending via Zoom: Tracey O'Roak, Laurie Smith, Jamie Mitchell, Louis Braxton
and Tim Murphy.

1. Call to Order.
Selectman Matthews-Bull called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. She took roll call of
Selectmen present: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, Michael Weston, Edward Hutchins,
and Sheila Matthews-Bull.

2. Presentation of evidence by Jamie Mitchell, former Town Clerk and Registrar of
Voters.
Laurie Smith, Town Manager advised that new information was provided prior to the
hearing that establishes residency of Mr. Braxton. A rental agreement for property in
Kennebunkport was provided. Therefore, Jamie Mitchell was not required to testify.

3. Presentation of evidence by Appellant, Louis Braxton.
Mr. Braxton spoke and advised the Board that he was not able to provide the proof of
residency documents sooner because he has been in Califomnia since January
handling a family matter.

4. Discussion by the Board.
Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to grant the appeal
and direct the Registrar of Voters to put Mr. Braxton onto the Voter List. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed

5. Adjournment.
Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggeitt, to adjourn at 6:10
PM. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted:
5-0. Motion passed

Submitted by,

Tracey O’Roak

Administrative Assistant



Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting VIA Zoom
March 24, 2022
6:00 PM

MINUTES

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, D. Michael Weston,
Edward Hutchins, and Sheila Matthews-Bull.

Others attending via Zoom: David Powell, Tracey O’'Roak, Denise Brown, Werner
Gilliam, Christopher Simeoni, Kevin Roche and Karen Winton.

1.

Call to Order

Selectman Matthews-Bull called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. She took roll call of
Selectmen present: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, Michael Weston, Edward Hutchins,
and Sheila Matthews-Bull. Selectman Matthews-Bull noted that there were 11
attendees in the audience.

Approve the March 3, March 8, March 10, and March 17, 2022, selectmen
meeting minutes

Motion by Selectman Briggs seconded by Selectman Hutchins to approve the March
3, March 8, March 10 and March 17, 2022, selectmen meeting minutes. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Weston, Matthews-Bull, Hutchins, and Daggett. Voted: 5-0.

Motion passed.

Public Forum. (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

There were no comments.

Consider renewal Special Amusement Application submitted by The Ramp Grill,
LLC d/b/a Pier 77 Restaurant located at 77 Pier Road.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs to approve the
request for a renewal Special Amusement License for The Ramp Grill d/b/a Pier 77
Restaurant located at 77 Pier Road. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett,
Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Review final fiscal year 2023 budgets and make recommendations.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Hutchins to recommend
$2,192,643 for General Government program expenses. Roll Call Vote: Briggs,
Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.



March 24, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Briggs to recommend
$3,211,343 for Public Safety program expenses. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston,
Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Hutchins to recommend
$821,509 for Health & Welfare program expenses. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston,
Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Motion by Selectman Briggs, seconded by Selectman Daggett to recommend
$1,426,660 for Public Works program expenses. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston,
Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Briggs to recommend
$677,409 for Recreation, Culture, Contingency & Misc. program expenses. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0.

Motion passed.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett to recommend
$3,427,231 for Capital Expenses & Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments.
Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed.

Presentation by Kevin Roche of Save Our Shores Saco Bay (SOS) regarding the
County purchase of dredging equipment.

Kevin Roche of SOS presented on a proposal to use County ARPA funds to purchase
dredge equipment to be owned by a joint commission. He asked for a letter of support
for the project. Discussion ensued and after questions from the Board, they decided
that this equipment would not benefit the Pier or the River. It was also pointed out that
the Army Corp of Engineers handles the dredging for the Town.

Authorize ordinance amendments be placed on the warrant for June Town
Meeting.

Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning, reviewed the sign ordinance revisions being
proposed for June.

Laurie Smith, Town Manager reviewed the proposed Kennebunk River Ordinance and
Interlocal agreement revisions.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Daggett to place the
ordinance amendments on the June Town Meeting Warrant.

Page 2 of 5



10.

1.

12.

March 24, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes

Presentation of The Kennector transportation program for seniors in
Kennebunk, Arundel and Kennebunkport.

Karen Winton, Deputy Director of the Community Development Department in
Kennebunk presented a proposed program similar to the Fish program that the Senior
Center offers. The major difference is that this program would allow residents to use
the service for transportation to places other than medical appointments. The funding
for the first year will come from a grant. In the future, the plan is to fund the program
with fees paid by the client. The model is built upon a national model — ITNCountry.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett to support The
Kennector program. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Matthews-Bull, and
Hutchins. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Annual Appointment of Town Officers.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Weston to approve the slate
of officers for 2022. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Matthews-Bull, and
Hutchins. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Consider establishing Zoning Determination fees.

Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development, explained the time and effort that
it takes to provide Zoning Determinations which are requested for purchase or
refinancing of certain properties. He proposed a fee schedule to offset staff time when
creating these determinations.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Dagget to approve the fee
schedule for Zoning Determination Fees. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett,
Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Update on landfill monitoring.

Christopher Simeoni, Public Works Director, gave an update on the landfill monitoring.
To date, only one well has exceeded the PFAS levels set by DEP. The Town is now
working with DEP to install a filter system for their water. We are still waiting on results
on 4 properties.

Review recommendations of the Beach Advisory Committee.
There was discussion on the recommendations as follows:

a. That landscaping, construction and maintenance vehicles must not park on the
street. This item was tabled to allow conversations with the businesses that will be
affected.

Page 3 of 5



13.

14,

March 24, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes

b. That the Town deploy occasional use of speed monitor on the west end of Kings
Highway and continue with sporadic speed monitor use on Dyke Road and New
Biddeford Road (placement to be determined). Speed bumps to be used again on
New Biddeford Road.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett to deploy occasional
use of a speed monitor. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and
Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

c. That the Town stripe both edges of the road (one foot from the edge) on the west
end of Kings Highway and on Community House Road. If this doesn’t help in 2022,
we could look at pedestrian/bike path in 2023.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett to stripe both edges
of the road with the understanding that these are fog lines, not pedestrian or bicycle
paths. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted:
5-0. Motion passed.

d. That the Town provides signage at the intersection of Dyke Road and Kings
Highway, indicating parking to the left (sign to be approved by town, police, and
signage committee). Also that the pictogram for “Towing” be added to sighage
where appropriate.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins to provide signage at the intersection of Dyke Road
and Kings Highway as well as a pictogram for towing. After discussion, there was no
second to the motion. Motion failed.

e. That existing crosswalks be repainted in bright white.
Staff indicated that this is done every year.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Weston to repaint existing
crosswalks bright white. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and
Matthews-Buill. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Accept $400 donation from Church on the Cape for the emergency fuel fund.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett to accept the
donation from Church on the Cape. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett,
Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Other business.

Selectman Daggett reminded everyone that the softball season is coming up and they
are looking for players. Contact Allen Daggett for details.

Page 4 of 5



March 24, 2022, BOS Meeting Minutes

Laurie Smith, Town Manager asked how the Board feels about meeting in person
using a hybrid system so that people can still join virtually. It was decided to try it for
the April 14" meeting.

16. Approve the March 24, 2022, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins seconded by Selectman Daggett to approve the March
24, 2022, Treasurer's Warrant. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins,
and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

16. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins seconded by Selectman Daggett to adjourn at 8:15
pm. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted:
5-0. Motion passed.

Submitted by,
Tracey O'Roak
Administrative Assistant

Page 5 of 5



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT

WARRANT
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
June 14 and 18, 2022

State of Maine County of York, SS.

To: Rebecca Nolette, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of York, State of
Maine.

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the voters of the
Town of Kennebunkport in said County and State of the Town Meeting described in this warrant.

GREETINGS:

To the voters of Kennebunkport: You are hereby notified that the Annual Town Meeting of this
municipality will be held at Village Fire Station, located at 32 North Street, in said Town on
Tuesday, the fourteenth (14™) day of June A.D. 2022, at 8:00 o'clock in the forenoon for the
purpose of acting on Articles numbered one a (1a) and one (1) as set out below. The polls for
voting on Article 1 shall be opened immediately after the election of the Moderator at 8:00 a.m.
on June 14, 2022, and shall close at 8:00 p.m. While the polls are open, the Registrar of Voters
will hold office hours to accept the registration of any person eligible to vote, to accept new
enrollments, and to make any necessary corrections or changes to any names or addresses on the
voting list. The continuation of said meeting will be held in the gymnasium of the Kennebunkport
Consolidated School located at 25 School Street in said Town on Saturday, the eighteenth (18%)
day of June A.D. 2022, at 9:00 o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of acting on Articles
numbered 2 through 12 as set out below.

ARTICLE 1a. To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting.

ARTICLE 1. To elect under the provisions of Title 30-A, M.R.S.A. Section 2528, the following
Town Officers: two (2) Selectmen, for a term of three years; one (1) Director of Regional School
Unit No. 21, for a term of three years; and one (1) Beach Advisory Committee At-Large Member,
for a term of one year; and to vote on the following referendum questions 1-4.

For each Question 1 through 4, a certified copy of the proposed ordinance is on file
in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference into each Question.

Item 4



ek s odeohe sk o s she s s sl sk ke s sk sk ok sk sk ok sk s sk ok st sk sk sk sk sfe sk sk st se sk sk sheske sk sk s ke sk sk sheske sk sfesle sk s sk sk sk e sl sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ko sk ok

QUESTION 1
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNK/KENNEBUNKPORT RIVER ORDINANCE
AND INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to the Kennebunk/Kennebunkport
River Ordinance” be enacted and a related Interlocal Agreement between the Town of
Kennebunkport and the Town of Kennebunk regarding the River Committee be
approved?

[Note of explanation: This amendment seeks to make amendments to the current ordinance and
Interlocal Agreement.]

e sk s ke s ok s ok sk sk she ke ok ok oke sk ok she ol ok sk sk ok st sk sk shesie st sk sk sfesfe sk st sk sk sk o e sk sk st ok ok sk sk ok sk sk ok s ok s st e ke e sfe sk e ke s sk sk ok sk ke o

QUESTION 2
AMENDMENT TO THE HARBOR AND WATERFRONT ORDINANCE

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to Harbor and Waterfront Ch. 61-12
“Definitions of Commercial and Recreational Moorings” be enacted?

[Note of explanation: This amendment corrects the inadvertent omission of Goose Rocks Beach
from the definitions.]

sk ok e ok ok s ok ok o s s ok s oke ok sk sfe ke sk sfeske o she o s sl ok she sk sheske s steok sk st st ok skoste sk sk st sk ok sk sk ok ke s ok st sk sk sk ok sk ok ke sk sk ok sk ek

QUESTION 3
AMENDMENT TO SIGN ORDINANCE

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment I to the Sign Ordinance” be enacted?

[Note of explanation: This amendment would revise the Town of Kennebunkport’s permanent
and temporary sign regulations.]

sk sk ofe sk sk ok ke ok ol sk sk ok sheske sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sheske sk sk sk s st s sk st s sk sk st s sk sk sfe sk ok s sl ofe sk o ok sk o ke sk sk sfe ok sk e sk s ok ok ok sk sk e koK

QUESTION 4
AMENDMENT TO SIGN ORDINANCE

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment II to the Sign Ordinance” be enacted?
[Note of explanation: This amendment would exempt certain signs that are owned and operated

by the Town of Kennebunkport, and located on Town-owned property, from regulations
governing illuminated signs, such as message board signs at town buildings.]

ke sk sk e sk sk ok ok o ok ok sk sk ok sk ook ok st s s st e st s s st ke Sl sfe sl sfesfe sk s ske sk sk sk ke sk sk ke sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok ok sk e s sfesle sk sfe o ek skl sk skoske e sk ok



ARTICLE 2: To see if the Town will vote to approve the following:

A. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town to sell and dispose of Real Estate acquired by the Town for
nonpayment of taxes thereon, and to execute quitclaim deeds on such terms as they deem
advisable, and to authorize the Treasurer to discharge unmatured liens on payment of taxes,
interest and costs.

B. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town, to waive the foreclosure of any tax lien mortgage by recording a
waiver of foreclosure in the York County Registry of Deeds for any real estate title to which
they deem not in the best financial interest of the Town to hold, said authorization to waive
not to prevent the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers,
from later foreclosing on said tax lien pursuant to law, as they deem advisable.

C. To make all real and personal property taxes due and payable upon presentment of bills
and to charge four percent (4.00%) per annum on the first half if unpaid after September
12, 2022 (or 45 days after the date of commitment if commitment is after July 21, 2022)
and on the second half if unpaid after March 10, 2023.

D. To set the interest rate to be paid by the Town on abated taxes at four percent (4.00%) for
the fiscal year 2023.

E. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard
agreement with taxpayers establishing a “tax club” payment plan for commercial and/or
residential real estate property taxes. (Explanation: This article allows the Town to
establish a tax club for citizens, similar to a Christmas club. Citizens establish a payment
plan so that they can make monthly payments throughout the year without risk of penalties
or interest charges.)

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted..

ARTICLE 3: To see if the Town will vote to approve the following:

A. To authorize the Selectmen to pay for tax abatements and applicable interest granted during
the fiscal year of 2022/2023 from Overlay. (Explanation: The Selectmen, as Assessors,
are authorized to raise Overlay under Title 36 MRSA section 710 but require voter
authorization to spend Overlay. Overlay cannot be more than 5% of the Tax Commitment.)

B. To authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept and expend from the following categories
of funds as provided by the State of Maine: Municipal Revenue Sharing, Educational
Certification Block Grant, Educational Tax Relief Grant, Public Library State Aid, Urban
Rural Road Initiative Program, Civil Emergency Funds, Snowmobile Registration Funds,
Tree Growth Reimbursement, General Assistance Reimbursement, Veterans Exemption
Reimbursement, Department of Economic & Community Development Grant Program,
Maine Emergency Management Agency, Homestead Exemption Reimbursement, and all



other state and federal grants and funds including, when necessary, the authority to sign
grant contracts, documents or other paperwork?

To authorize the Selectmen to carry forward unencumbered surplus fund balances on June
30, 2022, for the purposes originally appropriated and to appropriate such fund balances
for such purposes to the extent the Selectmen deem advisable, such determination to be
made at a properly noticed meeting of the Board of Selectmen.

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted: .
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted:

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to approve the following:

A. To authorize the Tax Collector or Treasurer to accept prepayments of taxes not yet

B.

committed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 506.

To authorize the Selectmen to accept easement deeds on behalf of the Town granting the
Town the right to plant and maintain certain trees on private property located within the
Town.

To authorize the Selectmen to accept unconditional and conditional gifts of money or
property on behalf of the Town, other than gifts of sewer extensions, subject to ratification
by the Town at an annual or special town meeting held within one year of the Selectmen’s
acceptance, except that such ratification shall not be required for a donation of money to
the Town to supplement a specific appropriation already made, to reduce the tax
assessment, or to reduce the permanent debt.

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted 0-0.

ARTICLE 5: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for General
Government Program expenses.
Amount requested: $2,192,643

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted..
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted:

ARTICLE 6: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Public Safety
Program expenses.
Amount requested $3,211,343

Selectinen recommend adoption of this article— Voted:.
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted:



ARTICLE 7: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Health & Welfare
Program expenses.
Amount requested: $821,509

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted
Budget Baard recommends adoption of this article — Voted:

ARTICLE 8: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Public Works

Program expenses.
Amount requested: $1,426,660

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted

ARTICLE 9: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Recreation, Culture,
Contingency and Miscellaneous Program expenses.
Amount requested: $3677,408

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted.
Budget Board recommends adoption of 1l thts artzcle Voted

ARTICLE 10: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Capital Expense
& Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments.
Amount requested: $3,427,231

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted.
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted.

ARTICLE 11: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $3,231,318 from estimated non-
property tax revenues,$200,000 from undesignated fund balance, and $700,000 from Capital
Projects Reserve Account to reduce the property tax commitment.

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted.



ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $385,000 from Coronavirus Local
Fiscal Recovery/American Rescue Plan Act federal grant funds for governmental services capital
purchases, including.

Depa apital Proje ARPA go O O
Police Purchase 2 Police Cruisers 68,000
Public Works Purchase §-ton Dump Truck 236,000
Public Works Purchase F-350 1-ton Dump Truck 70,000
Town Hall Update Town Website 5,000
Town Hall New Server 7,000

$386,000

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article— Voted:
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article — Voted:

HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of your doing
thereon, at a time and place of said meeting,

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 28th day of April 2022, Kennebunkport, Maine.

Edward W. Hutchins, IT Michael Weston

Allen A. Daggett Sheila W. Matthews-Bull

Patrick A. Briggs

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

A true attested copy of the warrant attest:

Tracey L. O’Roak, Town Clerk




AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 5

KENNEBUNKPORT WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

Date: March 31st, 2022
To: Laurie Smith
From: Chris Simeoni, Director of Public Works

Re: Agenda item for April 14th Selectmen’s meeting- Request for Street Opening
Permit and street lane closure on Ocean Avenue for Colony Hotel Project

On March 15th, the Public Works Department received a request from BREX
Corporation for a street opening permit for Ocean Avenue. BREX Corporation is
currently contracted by the Colony Hotel to complete the site work for the current hotel
project and reconstruction of Colony Avenue. The extent of the work is to excavate
and install a wastewater manhole on Ocean Avenue in the vicinity of 126 Ocean
Avenue to tie into the existing wastewater gravity main.

At this time, BREX is requesting a street lane closure for the work to be done toward
the end of April. Exact day TBD. The street lane closure will be during working hours
which will typically be from 7:00am to 5:00pm. Brex anticipates that the work will take
an entire day to be completed, barring any unknown variables that may prolong the
work. (e.g. additional hammering, ledge removal, etc.) Emergency access will not be
hindered. One lane of traffic will be left open.

BREX has submitted a memo request for the same, traffic plan and bond in the amount
of $2000.00 as required by ordinance. (Please see attached documents.) This
information has been shared with and reviewed by the Code Enforcement Department,
Police Department and Fire Department. At this time, there are no concerns regarding
the request for the street closure.

It is my recommendation to authorize both the street opening application and street
lane closure requests.

25R School Street, P.O. Box 1038, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-2245 Fax: (207) 967-5372



NBREX
&

258 Maguire Road

Kennebunk, Maine 04043

Phone: (207) 985 — 4447 ext. 204
Fax: (207) 985 — 7305

Email: nickb@brexcorp.com

March 29, 2022

Christopher Simeoni,
Director of Public Works
Town of Kennebunkport

6 Elm Street
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

RE: Ocean Ave Lane Closure
Chris,

BREX Corp is the site contractor for the Colony Hotel North Campus project. As part of this project BREX
Corp is going to be installing a new sewer manhole to tie the site sewer main to the existing sewer main in
Ocean Ave. This requires work to occur in the roadway, and BREX Corp will need to close one lane of traffic.
Lane closures will occur between the working hours of 7:00am and 5:00pm. There will be no hinderance to
emergency access. This work is scheduled to occur at the end of April.

Attached to this memo is a sighage plan for the proposed road closure. There will construction signs and
traffic cones placed in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. Please note the
signage plan shows the northbound lane closed, however at times the southbound lane may be closed with
the northbound lane open.

If you have any additional questions or concerns, please contact me at 207-985-4447 (ext. 204) or email
(nickb@brexcorp.com)

Sincerely,

kg ——

Nick Buonanno
Project Engineer



By:_ _4
g

|

|

Designed fiy:
Date: o
Date: 329 202:!1

| Checked
| Drawn B;:

| Dats:

@ TRAFFIC CONE

3A ILHOIYNNEINNIY
3AY N30

NVld 39VYNOIS

CONSTRUCTION SIGN

r
.

REF X3yaw

| |f

~ uonduaseg L_,Du .‘;E Igm |?,>
__ SNOisvay '__'_'I_gaii_ﬁi
|

|

|

|

|

|



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT

— CF Street’Opening Permit

PROPERTY INFORMATION
Boughton Hotel Corporation

Name of Homeowner:

address. 140 Ocean Ave Kennebunkport, ME

C

Date:

3/8/2022

Telephone:

207-337-1159
" Ocean Ave

Street to be excavated:

Map, Block, Lot:

8, 8 Lots 14, 15, 16

20FTx6FT

Size of excavation (leng'it:h and width):

Reason for excavation: Sewer service tie in

Permit Conditions: If:_there is, any intrusion into the black top, road should be paved from curb to curb.

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION

Date of excavation: End of Apf"

Name of Contractor: BREX COFP

Address: 258 Maguire Road

207-985-4447

Telephone:

rax: 207-985-7305

BOND & INSURANCE INFORMATION

Performance Bond: O Cash O Check O Money Order
Bond Amount: $ 2100000

Kl Surety Bond

0O Other

Company that issued the bond (if applicable):

Skillings Shaw & Associates

Person or entity providing the bond to the Town (contractor, property owner, other): Contractor

Insurance Company.__ P @triot Insurance

Signature of person completing the application: LLL}Q"/ Date: 3/8/2022
APPROVED

Highway Superintendent: Selectmen:

Selectmen: | Selectmen:

Selectmen: Selectmen:

Date Approved: Application Fee: $25.00

*Please attach map or sketch showing the location
and size of any cuts to be made; a bond; and proof
of insurance.

Date Paid:_%. 1S * @ 2

Amount Paid;: 2< .0 (=]

O Cash ﬂ Check
Y 3?

O Money Order



- ) ®
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/IDD/YYYY)
02/04/2022

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ONTATT " Pamela Fuller, AAI-M, CRIS
Chalmers Insurance Group - York PHONE . (207) 363-3200 ToX Noj: (207)363-1023
164 York Street ADDRess: Pfuller@ChalmersinsuranceGroup.com
PO Box 468 i INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
York ME 03309 INSURER A : Patriot Insurance Co. 32069
INSURED INSURER B: MEMIC 11148
BREX Cop INSURER € :
258 Maguire Road INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Kennebunk ME 04043 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: = MC 22-23 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.
iy TYPE OF INSURANCE D TWE POLICY NUMBER ABO ) | (G e LMITS
D€| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGCE g 1,000,000
3]
| cuams-mape OCCUR PREMISES (€ sccurence) | $_1:000,000
e MED EXP (Any one person) s 5.000
A 6654305 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | pergonar & ApviNURY | s 000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
|| PoLicy B | e PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 5 2:000,000
OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 1,000,000
OMBINED STV
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY EMOINED, SINGLELIMIT 571,000,000
>X| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
| owNED SCHEDULED =
A AUTOS ONLY aUTos 6654304 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
| HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident)
$
| umereLtaLa | X< occur EACH OCCURRENCE s 5.000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 6654305 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | sccrecare s 5,000,000
pep | DX revenmion s 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN X e [ [EF ——
B |oFFiCERMENERR EXGLUBED? T N ]| ra 5101800713 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | EL- EACHACCIDENT =
(Mandatory In NH) EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § 500,000
If yes, describe under- . 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow EL. DISEASE -poLICY LimiT | 5 500,

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached Iif move space is required)

JOB# 210407 Colony Hotel
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEL{VERED IN
Town of Kennebunkport ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
6 Eim Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Kennebunkport ME 04046 @O-’W\Uto-é Joua,
|
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) , The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Y o E ¥ SNOIMMAIEG ALSOUIATER INC:
\ M | BUILDING 0y A e N -
.—Eﬁm u i SECTION 18 t1 ] e——
== y ]
r i H SEE SHEET C34 Conctonn
P &= PP e e = 1
f g
1 | i * -
L PHASE) = e e

el

Lo 1209

Se0034y
48 UNDERDRAINS @ 8' 0.¢:, -
MARTAN POSITIVE SLOPE, o

CONCRETE PAD FOR MECHANICAL

z
[+]
&
4 §
i [}
BUILDING #2 i AM _ mm mmm
~nt 9 w m
e | 2 Eg
Y =2 g £
ye 2 5
La m o]
i i|| E _
»|| & mm
4 Z z
M .
— i Lm
e E mm
o]
I
W o
& 5
= O .u
3 gl
inds
XL WIRE & CABLE SERVICES mm W
ALONG OCEAN AVE. TOBE. Z m
H REPLACED FROM NEW POLE 842 [e] nm
£ ¥
..I|_. g
- 2
REPLACEMENT g w
ALY P §42 —
_ 3
i - ke (5= [ow [ =
——l = Tt
EXLSMH2TA .||-ll..—\- S .p lllllll — = = o
RBA=1141 " H -, B ¢ e o e e — >
J\.!asf:.ws - __ =1 | \—x e —_— e i\ o= Far ot
BT 1 ] o = o o
T . : —_——— . >
=X . — OCEAN AVENL l'l"“xgateﬂu.ns’-mn:zzs \“
O — _ s R m | SERLCED ._.s..ua_..u;.s\% — \\ \.J?lv ~ GENERAL NOTES: - i |
i T = A —— AT s [Efusrnieeil D ian BUILDING #2 GRADING

- m _ T - Blm— )W’\I.Yn.\..‘\% & N~ 373 AR PAIOCD oY A oo P AND UTILITIES PLAN
I JV ) I//.? OATA GATHERER NOV. 22, 2021 e rao

EX.SMH 278
/ N N— | R i KQ. e
T WM {EX, SMH 201) ~ 7.85 R
Py \ d., S — = PP - #tvomse0 ! i e = 2 N ot SN

B — e eemamem—— o - QAAPHIC SCALE
Rid=1273 — - —— e : . -
BV IEX SN 278) - 518 “ - - N I\ulunn.b...“ll.].r.\ln.v»/ ~ 2 | S ] £ -m ”uﬂ-ﬁ Oo
——— — = - e —
A P oeesaR — e ——— el e = - D ___JocAn .M
N [ /! (/ldﬂ” 1inen= 10m .DH ores v




BERKLEY
INSURANCE COMPANY

Licenge & Permit Bond

BOND NUMBER #0243481

knotw all men by these pregents

That BREX CORP., as PRINCIPAL and BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY. as SURETY are holden and
stand firmly bound and obliged unto the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE, in full and just sum of
TWO THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS***($2.000.00). fawful money of the United States, for the
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators,
successors an assigns, jointly, severally, and firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS, that, whereas, a STREET OPENING PERMIT
IN CONNECTION WITH OCEAN AVENUE ROAD. THE COLONY HOTEL PROJECT, is issued to said
principal by TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE. Now therefore, if the said obligor shall faithfully observe
and keep each and all the conditions and specifications contained in the Permit or License issued by said
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE on the application of said principal; then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. This bond is effective MARCH 8, 2022 and shall

expire MAY 8, 2024. It may be canceled by the Surety providing in writing, thirty (30) days notice to the
municipality.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals, this 8TH day of MARCH. 2022.

WITNESS: BREX CORP.

By: :‘h[v v By: ; -
N\ /7 T (Seal)

WITNESS: BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY

By: “lL% By: C”égm

Q JOLINE L. BINETTE, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (Seal)




WARNING - Any unauthorized reproduction or alteration of this document is prohibited. This power of attorney is void unless seals are readable and

the certification seal at the bottom is embossed. The background imprint, warning and verification instructions (on reverse) must be in blue ink.

No. BI-322d
POWER OF ATTORNEY
BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY
WILMINGTON, DELAWARE

NOTICE: The warning found elsewhere in this Power of Attorney affects the validity thereof. Please review carefully.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY (the “Company”), a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Greenwich, CT, has made, constituted
and appointed, and does by these presents make, constitute and appoint: Nancy L. Castonguay; Robert E. Shaw, Jr.; Heidi
Rodzen; Joline L. Binette; Melanie A. Bonnevie; or Samuel M. Goulet of Skillings - Shaw & Associates, Inc. of Lewiston, ME
its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety only as delineated below and to execute, seal, acknowledge and
deliver any and all bonds and undertakings, with the exception of Financial Guaranty Insurance, providing that no single obligation
shall exceed One Hundred Millior and 00/100 U.S. Dollars (U.S.$100,000,000.00), to the same extent as if such bonds had been

duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company at its principal office in their own proper
persons.

This Power of Attorney shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware,
without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof. This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to the following -
resolutions which were duly and validly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 235, 2010;

RESOLVED, that, with respect to the Surety business written by Berkley Surety, the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, President or any Vice President of the Company, in conjunction with the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary are hereby authorized to execute powers of attorney authorizing and qualifying the attorney-in-fact named therein
to execute bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations on behalf of the Company, and to affix the
corporate seal of the Company to powers of attorney executed pursuant hereto; and said officers may remove any such
attorney-in-fact and revoke any power of attorney previously granted; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney limits the acts of those named therein to the bonds, undertakings, recognizances,
or other suretyship obligations specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the
manner and to the extent therein stated; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney-in-fact named; and
further

RESOLVED, that the signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any
power of attorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or
other suretyship obligation of the Company; and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as
though manually affixed. The Company may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the facsimile signature of any
person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that they may have
ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate olficers and its

corporate seal hereunto affixed this 13" day of -TR030 .
Altest: / ,» iua: Berklgy Tnsurance Company
(Scal) By ay, Byjy M “f‘!‘f | UH‘V/

Irz'S. Ledetman < Jelirgy M/ Hafter
Executive Vice President & Sccretary . Serli ce Presjdent

WARNING: THISPOWER INVALID IF NOT PRINTED ON BLUX “BERKLEY” SECURITY PAPER.

STATE OF CONNECTICUT )
) us:

COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )
Sworn to before me, a Notary Public in the State of Connecticut, this jé*r day of y SC3L | by Ira 8. Ledermun

and Jefiicy M. Hafter who are sworn to me to be the Executive Vice President Secretary, and ths Senior Vice President,
respectively, of Berkley Insurance Company, MARIA © RUNDRAKEW 5 é

TARY FURL IC e
mc}%&zgﬁl%ﬂna / g
ARHIL 20, 202¢ Alotary Public, State of Connecficut
CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete copy of the original Power of Attorney;, that said Power of Attorney has nol been revoked or rescinded
and that the authority of the Attorney-in-Fact set forth therein, who executed the bond or undertaking to which this Power of
Attomey is attached, is in full foree and effect as of this date, -~

Given under my hand aad seal of the Cotnpany, this _8th duy of March. / ,_ 2022

{Seal)

Vincent P. Forte =~ = ——



BERKLEY
INSURANCE COMPANY

Licenge & Permit Bond

BOND NUMBER #0243481

knotw all men by these pregents

That BREX CORP., as PRINCIPAL and BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, as SURETY are holden and
stand firmly bound and obliged unto the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE, in full and just sum of
TTWO THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS***($2.000.00). lawful money of the United States, for the
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators,
successors an assigns, jointly, severally, and firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS, that, whereas, a STREET OPENING PERMIT
IN CONNECTION WITH OCEAN AVENUE ROAD, THE COLONY HOTEL PROJECT. is issued to said
principal by TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE. Now therefore, if the said obligor shall faithfully observe
and keep each and all the conditions and specifications contained in the Permit or License issued by said
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE on the application of said principal; then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. This bond is effective MARCH 8, 2022 and shall

expire MAY 8,_2024. It may be canceled by the Surety providing in writing, thirty (30) days notice to the
municipality.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals, this 8TH day of MARCH. 2022.

WITNESS: BREX CORP.

By: v By: -
(Seal)

WITNESS: BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY

6 JOLINE L. BINETTE, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (Seal)




y is void unless seals are readable and

, warning and verification instructions (on reverse) must be in blue ink.

his document is prohibited. This power of attorne

WARNING - Any unauthorized reproduction or alteration of tl

nd imprint

the certification seal at the bottom is embossed. The backgrou

No. BI-322d
POWER OF ATTORNEY
BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY
WILMINGTON, DELAWARE

NOTICE: The warning found elsewhere in this Power of Attorney affects the validity thereof, Please review carefully.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY (the “Company™), a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Greenwich, CT, has made, constituted
and appointed, and does by these presents make, constitute and appoint: Nancy L. Castonguay; Robert E. Shaw, Jr.; ek
Rodzen; Joline L. Binette; Melanie A. Bonnevie; or Samuel M, Goulet of Skillings - Shaw & Associates, Inc. of Lewiston
its true and lawful Attomey-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety only as delincated below and to execute, seal, acknowle
deliver any and all bonds and undertakings, with the exception of Financial Guaranty Insurance, providing that no single oblil% v
shall exceed One Hundred Million and 00/100 U.S, Dollars (U.S.5100,000,000.00), to the same extent as if such bonds had been
duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company at its principal office in their own proper,
persons.

This Power of Attorney shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware,
without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof. This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to the following .
resolutions which were duly and validly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 25, 2010;

RESOLVED, that, with respect to the Surety business written by Berkley Surety, the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, President or any Vice President of the Company, in conjunction with the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary are hereby authorized to execute powers of attorney authorizing and qualifying the attorney-in-fact named therein
to execute bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations on behalf of the Company, and to affix the
corporate seal of the Company to powers of attorney executed pursuant hereto; and said officers may remove any such
attorney-in-fact and revoke any power of attorney previously granted; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney limits the acts of those named therein to the bonds, undertakings, recognizances,
or other suretyship obligations specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the
manner and to the extent therein stated; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney-in-fact named; and
further

RESOLVED, that the signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any
power of attorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or
other suretyship obligation of the Company; and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and cffect as
though manually affixed. The Company may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the facsimile signature of any
person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that they may have
ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Compawy has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropriate olficers and ity

corporate seal hereunto affixed this 13" day of e ;=030 .
Attest: Berkley Insurance Company
(Seal) By 7"y By : M *{'Lf H\,/
IraS, Ledeman < Ie M Hafter ' U
Executive Vice President & Sccretary - Serlidr Vice President

WARNING: THIS POWER INVALID IF NOT PRINTED ON BLUE “BERKLEY” SECURITY PAPER.

STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) ss:
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Sworn to before me, a Notary Public in the State of Cupnecticut, this j_é*r day of
und Jeffrey M. Hafter who are swom to me to be the Executive Viee President

respoctively, of Berkley lusurance Company. Wﬂ&.:k‘;‘}‘m‘l'ée“

CONMECTICUT
MY COMMISSION EXPIRER
APHIL 30, 2024

N € » QOO | by Irer 8. Lederman
Sei:retaly, and ths Senior Viece President,

otary Public, State of Copnecteut

CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete copy of the original Power of Attorney; that said Power of Attorney has not been revoked or rescinded
snd that the authority of the Attomey-in-Fact set forth therein, who executed the bond or undertaking to which this Power of
Attorney is attached, is in full force and effect as of this date.

Given under my haod and seal of the Cornpany, this_ 8th duyof March. / . 2022.

{Seal)

Vincent P. Forte . = = —



‘) TOWN OFEXKENNEBUNKPORT
' ' & £ reet Opening Permit

PROPERTY INFORMATION
Boughton Hotel Corporation

3/8/2022

Name of Homeowner: o I Date: S
Address: 140 Ocean Ave Keglje_bulwkpoi, ME
Telephone: 207-§I_5;7-1 159 Map, Block, Lot: 8 & Lots 14, 15, 16
Street to be excavated: Ocean Ave -
20FTx6FT

Size of excavation (length and width): -

Reason for excavation: Sewer service tie in

Permit Conditions: If there is, any intrusion into the black top, road should be paved from curb to curb.

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION
End of April

Date of excavation:

Name of Contractor:___ BREX Corp

Address: 258 Maguire Road

207-985-4447 207-985-7305

Telephone: Fax: B

BOND & INSURANCE INFORMATION

Performance Bond: O Cash O Check [0 Money Order X! Surety Bond O Other

Bond Amount: $i 2_,OOOOO

Company that issued the bond (if applicable): Skl"lngS Shaw & Associates

Contractor

Person or entity providing the bond to the Town (contractor, property owner, other):

Patriot Insurance

Insurance Company:

Signature of person completing the application:

tlo——— L 3/8/2022

APPROVED
Highway Superintendent: Selectmen:
Selectmen: Selectmen:
Selectmen: ' Selectmen:
Date Approved: _ Application Fee: $25.00
Date Paid:_2.1S * @ 2~
*Please attach map or sketch showing the location Amount Paid: 2<. O o
and size of any cuts to be made; a bond; and proof O Cash y Check O Money Order

of insurance. -4 [ Y 5?



. " Ve
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
02/04/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER NaMEACT Pamela Fuller, AAI-M, CRIS
R | PHONE & FAX
Chalmers Insurance Group - York {AIS. No, Extl: (207) 363-3200 {AJE, No): (207) 363-1023
164 York Street L 5. pluller@ChalmersinsuranceGroup.com
PO Box 468 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
York ME 03909 INSURER A : Fatriot Insurance Co. 32069
INSURED INSURERE: MEMIC 11149
BREX Corp INSURER C ;
258 Maguire Road INSURER D
INSURER E :
Kennebunk ME 04043 INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: MC 22-23 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
N ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF LICY E
ey TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER [Mlcm’/nmwm um\)nlnmw’gr; LIMITS
>¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
TAMAGE T0 RENTED
| cLams-ADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrencey | §_1/000,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 9,000
A 6654305 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | peesonalaADyINURY | g 1:000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
POLICY T | Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | § 2:000,000
OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY A ) $ 1,000,000
(| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
| OWNED SCHEDULED -
A AUTOS ONLY ATOS 6654304 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| HRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS ONLY {Per accident]
$
<] UMBRELLALIAB | X| occuR EACH OCCURRENCE s 5,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CrAIMSMADE 6654305 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | yoorecnre s 5,000,000
DED | ><| RETENTION § 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X‘ PER ! OTh-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER =
0,000
B | AN RO R TR AR TNERIEXECUTIVE N/A 5101800713 02/01/2022 | 02/01/2023 | EL- EACHACCIDENT $
(Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | 3 900,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LiMIT | § 200,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
JOB# 210407 Colony Hotel
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Town of Kennebunkport
6 Elm Street

Kennebunkport ME 04046

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

QO/WLU{L& Foltsy

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




SEE mImm% c33
= o o

G

M

b

&W SOR3S PVE:

L=1302
8=00287

EX5MH274
RIM = 1141

\LE_ (SMH-1) = 5,07

(@ e

4 i S I N A —_— i B4
Yy f h‘.,M.\\ " \ { BUILDING #1 RIb 28.25
) - L i CTIO
PR o my 2500 rasen { SECTION#1B |
’ / - : 7 = e =) = | SEE SHEET C3.4
= - 5 TS R T ST Yol 17 3 P!Huﬂ I 5 e | -
L L sresconen | b M : 1 e+ o o ol : "
A FETAMNGWALLS SEE_} § 3 / \ ew SToFE VPRE 1 . *k i —
: . g - g §
" . PHASE | [ W e oy = 833
SEl s A et 4 RIM 2800
80 2680
=3 [
W X
] 3 : a3z
$=00347 s 3 43 ) RIM 26.0:
075 { ¥ =
40 UNDERDRAINS 6 8'0.C,, :
MARTAN POSITVE SLCPE, =
CONCRETE PAD FOR MECHANICAL 330
‘EQUIP. COORD, WITH MECHANICAL RIM 26.80
7 E 250 GONCRETE PAD FOR
1 ECHANICAL EQUIP. / &,
Iy COORD. WITH e S0 i
1y (ECHANICAL FOR g
! RETAINING WALL 2, - - 2
! ‘CASTIN-PLACE GONCRETE WALL
X WITH PRECAST CONCRETE CAP s 0 =7
I - - i
! 12,0006AL S s ‘
] RIINATE CONDUIT FOR LiE) UNDERGROUND PRI -
ST Tl . SIGN LIGHTING ON THE WEST TAKK WITH CONCRETE. cx
SIDE OF THE RETAINING WALL A . %
) v _Jo,RECAST AL i p 2300
!
. BT < «
_ BUILDING #2 Ll T &\\_ o fr = L
y =
4
o 2074 Zasa ELECTRICAL & COMMUNICATION mm..
H ATy
; i . coononme i tieamen, ¥ B
ASTFLR. AN, H o b = \ % SITE PLAN FORSIZE, g o
FLREL 1550 ¢ I Y., /L § W 2
W g o Bl o 5
\ i 250 2250 /\\ 0
B : 4 ;
I L ——— / /.
[ \ . NEW UTILATY POLE & GUY, ‘ X (4
ISR o M | Y § COORDINATE WITH A \l«b.n / > -
A N o o 2050 e e Ve h\ .“.
e Y RETAINING WALL 1, 17 o i i
1540 N h CASTAN-PLACE CONCRETE WALL 4 7 3
s R P 'WITH PRECAST CONGRETE CAP e a -
[P . T 17 Hpsas
s v i
3 G
s Tias
EX. WIRE & CADLE SERVICES
ALONG OCEAN AVE, 70 BE
'REPLAGED FROM NEW POLE #a2 ~
..
- 120 .
= 1220 1340 1420 0, 33507 21450, 1410, b~
150 1020
H 14003 ——
.ll.'.l.,,-l'-lll.lll. T —— 4 — ¢ o — —Tm e
_ " % LR U=
v e | - | CONNECT 10 EX. MAN WITH
= | Lnl—.|I|||.. :
.r_ . . T T X HYDRANT AND EX, 8'0 WATERMAIN TO

——e e

OCEAN AVENUE |

BE REPLAGED BY OTHERS PER KKWWD

WALSH

RNGINIEAING ARSOCIATER 1AC

‘G O S TA §sovbronk, ke 0002
W OUPBINE | v

Camert 2

‘CONSTRUGTION MANAGER
WRIGHT-RYAN CONSTRUCTION
10 DANFORTH STREET
PORTLAND, MAINE
20 7733825

COLONY HOTEL - NORTH CAMPUS
140 OCEAN AVENUE

140 OCEAN AVENUE
KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE

ownER:
BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP.

: GENERAL NOTES: e
T s W e g | FH BUILDING #2 GRADING
e L SEESHEET ©1.0 FOR GENERAL NOTES AND LEGEND,
g _. _!. - e 2 PIPE INVERTS FOR EXISTING STRUGTURES SMH 274 AND AND UTILITIES PLAN
o —— _ SMH 278 ARE PROVIDED 8 BREX CORPORATIN, FIELD
| DATA GATHERED NOV. 22, 2021
.7,“ H _zs.mww.“: 2011 =785 " e
R B T INvo - GRAPHIC SCALE - =l
o i T e £ T S S e > 3
s 1273 - e . ~ 5 . - o | B o]
INVI (EX, SMH 278) ~ = N —i { 5 w N
) =518 7 — T = | — | &\ o—semn] €
INVI (SMH-2) = 5,18 . N —— TR Ny i B 3 i
=" —INvo-5.18 = — X \< »_ T, Linc - 301 @ -




BERKLEY
INSURANCE COMPANY

License & Permit Wond

BOND NUMBER #0243481

Enotw all men by these pregents

That BREX CORP., as PRINCIPAL and BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, as SURETY are holden and
stand firmly bound and obliged unto the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE, in full and just sum of

P TWO0 THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS***($2.000.00), lawful money of the United States, for the
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators,
successors an assigns, jointly, severally, and firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS, that, whereas, a STREET OPENING PERMIT

IN CONNECTION WITH OCEAN AVENUE ROAD. THE COLONY HOTEL PROJECT. is issued to said
principal by TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE. Now therefore, if the said obligor shall faithfully observe
and keep each and all the conditions and specifications contained in the Permit or License issued by said
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE on the application of said principal; then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. This bond is effective MARCH 8. 2022 and shall
expire MAY 8,_2024. It may be canceled by the Surety providing in writing, thirty (30) days notice to the
municipality.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals, this 8TH day of MARCH. 2022,

(Seal)

WITNESS: BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY

By: ' / —— By: %M

= ’:‘\: JOLINE L. BINETTE, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (Seal)




WARNING

No. Bl1-322d

) POWER OF ATTORNEY
BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY
WILMINGTON, DELAWARE

NOTICE: The warning found elsewhere in this Power of Attorney affects the validity thereof. Please review carefully.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY (the “Company™), a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Greenwich, CT, has made, constituted
and appointed, and does by these presents make, constitute and appoint: Nancy L. Castonguay; Robert E. Shaw, Jr.; Heidi
Rodzen; Joline L. Binette; Melanie A. Bonnevie; or Samuel M. Goulet of Skillings - Shaw & Associates, Inc. of Lewiston, ME
its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety only as delineated below and to execute, seal, acknowledge and
deliver any and all bonds and undertakings, with the exception of Financial Guaranty Insurance, providing that no single obligation
shall exceed One Hundred Million and 00/100 U.S. Dollars (U.S.$100,000,000.00), to the same extent as if such bonds had been
duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company at its principal office in their own proper
persons.

This Power of Attorney shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware,
without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof. This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to the following
resolutions which were duly and validly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 25, 2010:

RESOLVED, that, with respect to the Surety business written by Berkley Surety, the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, President or any Vice President of the Company, in conjunction with the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary are hereby authorized to execute powers of attorney authorizing and qualifying the attorney-in-fact named therein
to execute bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations on behalf of the Company, and to affix the
corporate seal of the Company to powers of attorney executed pursuant hereto; and said officers may remove any such
attorney-in-fact and revoke any power of attorney previously granted; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney limits the acts of those named therein to the bonds, undertakings, recognizances,
or other suretyship obligations specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the
manner and to the extent therein stated; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney-in-fact named; and
further

RESOLVED, that the signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any
power of attorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or
other suretyship obligation of the Company; and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as
though manually affixed. The Company may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the facsimile signature of any
person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that they may have
ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused these presents to. be signed and attested by its appropriate officers and its
corporate seal hereunto affixed this 13 day of -772030 .

Attest: Berklgy Tnsurance Company
(Seal) By v - By QK
IraS. Lederman < el
Executive Vice President & Sccretary . Serii

WARNING: THISPOWER INVALID IF NOT PRINTED ON BLUE “BERKLEY” SECURITY PAPER.
STATE OF CONNECTICUT )
) ss:
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Sworn to before me, a Notary Public in the State o Connecticut, this \3% day of _ hbverrloer , QOB |, by Ire §. Lederman
and Jeffrcy M. Hafter who are sworn to me to be the Executive Vice President,

Secretmy, %ﬂm Vice President,
MARIA © RUNDAAKEN j

respectively, of Berkley Insurance Company. NOTARY CRLIS
otary Puhhc, State of Connecticut

CONNECTICUT
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES -

ARHIL 110, 2024
CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the forezoing is a
true, correct and complete copy of the original Power of Attorney; that said Power of Attorney has nol been revoked or rescinded
and that the dlllh()nly of the Attorney-in-Pact set forth therein, who executed the bond or undertaking to which this Power of
Attorney is attached, is in foll foree and effect as of this date, b
Given under my haod and seal of the Corapany, this_ 8th duyof March., /

-

{Seal)

Vincent P. Forte



BERKLEY
INSURANCE COMPANY

Licenge & Permit Wond

BOND NUMBER #0243481

knotw all men by these pregents

That BREX CORP., as PRINCIPAL and BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, as SURETY are holden and
stand firmly bound and obliged unto the TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE. in full and just sum of

e TWO THOUSAND AND 00/100 DOLLARS***($2,000.00). lawful money of the United States, for the
payment of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators,
successors an assigns, jointly, severally, and firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS, that, whereas, a STREET OPENING PERMIT

IN_ CONNECTION WITH OCEAN AVENUE ROAD, THE COLONY HOTEL PROJECT, is issued to said
principal by TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT. MAINE. Now therefore, if the said obligor shall faithfully observe
and keep each and all the conditions and specifications contained in the Permit or License issued by said
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE on the application of said principal; then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. This bond is effective MARCH 8, 2022 and shall
expire MAY 8, 2024. it may be canceled by the Surety providing in writing, thirty (30) days notice to the
municipality.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals, this 8TH day of MARCH. 2022.

WITNESS: BREX CORP.
By: v By: ~
(Seal)
WITNESS: BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY

N G o bl

/f‘f JOLINE L. BINETTE, ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (Seal)




prohibited. This power of attorney is void unless seals are readable and

WARNING — Any unauthorized reproduction or alteration of this document is

the certification seal at the bottom is embossed. The backer

ound imiprint, warning and verification instructions (on reverse) must be in blue ink.

=

No. BI-322d

: POWER OF ATTORNEY
BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY
WILMINGTON, DELAWARE

NOTICE: The waming found elsewhere in this Power of Attorney affects the validity thereof. Please review carefully.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY (the “Company”), a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal office in Greenwich, CT, has made, constituted
and appointed, and does by these presents make, constitute and appoint: Nancy L. Castonguay; Robert E. Shaw, Jr.; Feidi
Rodzen; Joline L. Binette; Melanie A. Bonnevie; or Samuel M. Goulet of Skillings - Shaw & Associates, Inc. of Lewistori, I{E
its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety only as delineated below and to execute, seal, acknow]edg% and
deliver any and all bonds and undertakings, with the exception of Financial Guaranty Insurance, providing that no single oblig % t
shall exceed One Hundred Million and 00/100 U.S. Dollars (U.S.$100,000,000.00), to the same extent as if such bonds had been
duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of the Company at its principal office in their own propex
persons.

This Power of Attorney shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State of Delaware,
without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws thereof, This Power of Attorney is granted pursuant to the following .
resolutions which were duly and validly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on January 25, 2010:

RESOLVED, that, with respect to the Surety business written by Berkley Surety, the Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, President or any Vice President of the Company, in conjunction with the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary are hereby authorized to execute powers of attorney authorizing and qualifying the attorney-in-fact named therein
to execute bonds, undertakings, recognizances, or other suretyship obligations on behalf of the Company, and to affix the
corporate seal of the Company to powers of attomey executed pursuant hereto; and said officers may remove any such
attorney-in-fact and revoke any power of attorney previously granted; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney limits the acts of those named therein to the bonds, undertakings, recognizances,
or other suretyship obligations specifically named therein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the
manner and to the extent therein stated; and further

RESOLVED, that such power of attorney revokes all previous powers issued on behalf of the attorney-in-fact named; and
further

RESOLVED, that the signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any
power of attorney or certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or
other suretyship obligation of the Company; and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as
though manually affixed. The Company may continue to use for the purposes herein stated the facsimile signature of any
person or persons who shall have been such officer or officers of the Company, notwithstanding the fact that they may have
ceased to be such at the time when such instruments shall be issued.,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused these presents to, be signed and attested by its appropriate olficers and its

corporate seal hereuuto affixed this E’fday of e —7 2030 .
Alttest: / ,- & Berklgy Tnsurance Company
(Seal) By ‘ / Byj%lﬂ\/h{ -1 UF!'\"/

Ir=S. Ledernan < Jelfi M after
}

Executive Vice President & Sccretary “wSeriaf Vice President
WARNING: THIS POWER INVALID IF NOT PRINTED ON BLUX “BERKLEY” SECURITY PAPER.
STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) us:

COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )
Swom to before me, a Notary Public in the State of Conpecticut, this L?Q‘f day of _ hovercboer , Q0O |, by Ire S. Lederman

and Jefirey M. Hafter who are sworn to me to be the Executive Viee President,, Secretary, and ths Senior Vice President,
respectively, of Berkley Insurance Company. MARIAC RUNDRAKEN / ’ g A
GONHECTICUT N L

mcoﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ!n‘i’éﬂam Aotary Public, State of Connecficut
CERTIFICATE
1, the undersighed, Assistant Secretary of BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete copy of the original Power of Attorney; that said Power of Attorney has nol been revoked or rescinded
and that the suthority of the Artomey-in-Fact set forth thergin, who executed Lhe bond or undertaking to which this Power of
Attorney is attached, is in foll force and effect a3 of this date. //-‘
Given under my hand and seal of the Corapany, this_8th dayof March..

{Seal)

Vincent P. Forle



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Proposed FY23 Wastewater Budget

Account# Account FY22 FY23 $ Inc/Dec % Inc/Dec
10-01 Salaries & Wages $483,772 $487,046 3,274.00 0.68%
10-10 Overtime $21,000 $16,974 (4,026.00) -19.17%
12-01 FICA & Medicare $41,137 $41,366 229.00 0.56%
12-02 MSRS $31,433 $34,219 2,786.00 8.86%
12-03 ICMA $18,932 $17,729 (1,203.00) -6.35%
12-04 RHSP $2,437 $0 (2,437.00) -100.00%
12-05 Health Plan BC-ME $105,003 $101,818 (4,085.00) -3.86%
12-06 Dues & Fees $500 $500 0.00 0.00%
12-07 Travel (Mileage) $400 $400 0.00 0.00%
12-08 Training & Education $3,000 $3,000 0.00 0.00%
12-11 Vaccine $100 $100 0.00 0.00%
12-12 Uniforms $3.500 $2,500 (1,000.00) -28.57%
12-16 HRA & Fees $7,220 $5,831 (1,389.00) -19.24%
15-01 Electricity $92,000 $92,000 0.00 0.00%
15-02 Telephone $7,250 $8,900 1,650.00 22.76%
15-03 Fuel Heating $7,040 $14,000 6,960.00 98.86%
15-05 Water $1,323 $1,450 127.00 9.60%
15-06 Internet $3,500 $0 (3,500.00) -100.00%
20-01 Printing $800 $800 0.00 0.00%
20-04 Advertising $500 $500 0.00 0.00%
20-06 Expert / Professional Services $8,000 $8,000 0.00 0.00%
20-07 Audit $3,500 $3,500 0.00 0.00%
20-08 Data Processing $3,000 $3,000 0.00 0.00%
20-20 Maintenance - Wet Wells $7,000 $8,000 1,000.00 14.29%
20-21 Maintenance-Contracts $5,150 $5,150 0.00 0.00%
20-25 Radio & Alarms $2,950 $2,950 0.00 0.00%
20-26 Licenses $4,100 $4,100 0.00 0.00%
20-44 Sludge Hauling $0 $100,000( 100,000.00 #DIV/0!
25-02 Workmen's Compensation $19,570 $5,000 {14,570.00) -74.45%
25-03 Unemployment Insurance $1,933 $1,000 (933.00) -48.27%
25-05 General Liability Insurance $9,200 $25,000 15,800.00 171.74%
25-07 Fleet Insurance $6,800 $3,000 (3,800.00) -55.88%
25-10 Public Officials $1,950 $1,000 (950.00) -48.72%
30-01 Office Supplies $1,800 $1.800 0.00 0.00%
30-03 Vehicle Supplies $2,000 $2,000 0.00 0.00%
30-04 Postage $2,000 $2,000 0.00 0.00%
30-05 Photocopier $2,400 $2,000 (400.00) -16.67%
30-18 Hand Tools $3,840 $3,840 0.00 0.00%
30-24 Gasoline $4,886 $5,600 714.00 14.61%
30-25 Diesel $13,750 $10,500 (3,250.00) -23.64%
30-27 Composting $4,750 $2,000 (2,750.00) -57.89%
30-28 Collection System $32,000 $20,000 (12,000.00) -37.50%
30-29 Chemicals Process $16,000 $20,000 4,000.00 25.00%
30-30 Lab Supplies $12,000 $22,500 10,500.00 87.50%
30-31 Safety Equipment $6,500 $3,500 (3,000.00) -46.15%
30-32 Maint. Supplies $1,500 $1,500 0.00 0.00%
30-33 Bio-Ash $10,000 $6,000 (4,000.00) -40.00%
30-34 Qdor Control $16,000 $17,500 1,500.00 9.38%
30-39 Billing & Liens $2,600 $2,600 0.00 0.00%
35-01 Building Maintenance $26,000 $26,000 0.00 0.00%
35-03  |Vehicle Maintenance $8,500 $6,500 (2,000.00) -23.53%
45-03 Sewer Bond 2003 Principal $22,394 $22,538 194.00 0.87%
45-07 Sewer Bond 2003 Interest $1,301 $1,070 (231.00) -17.76%
45-12 Sewer Bond 2018 Principal $3,221 $39,554 36,333.00 1128.00%
45-22 Sewer Bond 2018 Interest $1,844 $9,661 7,817.00 423.92%
50-34 Transfer to general fund $30,000 $30,0600 0.00 0.06%
50-86 Sewer Assessment CCTV @ 15-year $7,000 $7,000 0.00 0.00%
50-92 Payroll Contingency $17,757 $0 (17,757.00) -100.00%
60-04 Capital Equipment $96,000 $50,000 (46,000.00) -47.92%
60-05 Capital Reserve $15,000 $78,500 63,500.00 423.33%

Total Expenditures $1,265,943 $1,393,046 $127,103 10.04%
Revenues
Investment Income 5,000.00
Sewer Fund Balance 35,000.00
Transfer in for debt 109,310.00
Sewer user fees 1,243,736.00
1,393,046.00
Sewer users: 2,490 FY23 Rate 499.52
FY22 Rate 480.63
% of Increase 3.93%

Item 6



%00°00T-

%198~

%bt'L

%8E"T-

%L1°6T-

%95°¢C-

00°LEV'T- 000 000 00°Lev'e 00°St'C

00°0£9°T- 00°6Z£'L1 £5"b60ET 00°66€'6T ST°20g’61

00'69£°C 00'6TZ"vE 01°989¢¢ 00°0S8'1€ ¥6'980°6¢

00°24S- 00'99£'TH ¥9°£54°8C 00°SH6'TH 846160

00920~ 00'%£6'9T £9°S4L'TT 00°000T¢C 9/°509'1¢

00°€6£'2T- 00°90"/8% 62'921°ZSE 00°6£8'661 £4'092"661

‘3w paniioe
104 ejnuiio) paacidde Bunuawaidun
0} anp saaiodws qibie
ou - uejd sBuiaes yjeay juswaiiSy
00'ST9°E dSHY +0-21
‘saakojdwa 9)qibys 1oy
uejd uopesuadwod paLRJeP /S VIWII
00°90+°£1 VIWOI €0-CT
WRWRIRRY 3els
aujep 40} uoNqUIUod s Jaioidwg
00°LSt'8¢C SUSK 20-¢T
"(%59°2)
VJI4 10) uoRNQUIUOI S JaAo|dwq
00'6£0°TH VOId 10-21
sjyausg
‘sAepijoy pue
spua)eam 10) 9bRI12ACD pue Speq|ed
sapnpuUl 12y} sabem SWIHaAQ
00°000°91 SWILIBAQ 0T-0T
"ISSY "UIPY B JO 9%ST
pue ‘12au1bug sy Jo o407 ‘1obeuepy
suoneIdQ 3y} JO %0E “1opalIq
9U3 JO 94,05 J0) sabem pue sauejes
00°€00°68 sobem g soLeles 10-01
[2uuosIad

Joiemaisepn / spund asudisyug 10-/+ :Aafdeg

T 2bed
Teoe/1e/€0

9, 2bueYD
png Ln)
SA bay uep

$ abuey) Jobeuep alA 106png jenpy

png 1nD €0t (44114 (4414 T0e
JSA bay uepy

asuadx3y

sisenbay s,10p211q Juawpedaq

1ebpng
1202

WV 91:0T
LAODINNGINNIA



‘suiiojiun a3Aojdwa ade|dal
pue syaypel sajuim aseyosind o]

%LS 8¢~ 00°000'T- 00°005°C 96°619 00°00S°E Y0ZEY'E 00005y suuojun Z1-21
-saaAojdwa 10} suoeupdeA palinbay

%00" 000 00°001 000 00°007 000 00°00T SUROeA TT-Z1
Bujuien ayy

40 3sow Josuods 3D 13C pue ‘YDdMIN
‘UOIIRIDOSSY |0UOY) JOIeMIISEAN SUlejy
SUl "Vd3 Si pue d3Q sulep sy

Aq paainbal s 3eyy buiuies 1oy Aed o]

%00" 000 007000°€ 00'0ce 00000’ 00°00¢ 00°000°€ uoieonp3 g buluiel] 80-z1
‘[oARI} JO SUBBW IUI0
pue ‘6uibpoy} ‘sjeaw se yons sasuadxa
pajejad [PARL) JBYI0 JO) JUSWIDSINQUIIR]
SOpN|DUl OS]y "SSOUISNC UMO)
uo 3jIym SaPIYLA |euossad JO asn 10y
JUBWISINQUWIRI SSPNJPUI JUNodde SIY |

%00’ 00°0 00700t 9T'vL 00700t S/°S8 00°00% sbunosiy 8 |PARlL £0-ZT
*sjewanol
apeJ} pue [euoissajosd 03 suopdiosgns
pue ‘uojjesapa4 JUSWUCIAUT
JD)JRA DU ‘UOiIBIDOSSY [043U0D)
J2)EMBISBAN DUIRl 33 J04 SaNQ

%00 000 007005 00°0Lp 00°00s 00°8¥C 00°00S $994 B 59nQ 90-¢T
"1S00 33 JO %ST S=INgLIued
22/ojdwg "€z0z 1eaA Jepudjed
ul Buluuibag aseanu) 90T Pajewnss
ue sapnpuj 326pnq sy "1edk
Jepuajed yoea 19s aJe sajel Wniwald
*00S Odd - @beIaA0D dueINsSUl Y)|eaK

%98°¢- 00°S80'%- 00°818'101 TE/0€'79 00°€06'S0T 81°90£'80T 00°68S'TST yijesH So-2T
(.LNOD 11emaisepy / spund asudioul 10-Z¢ :Alg/fideq

%, 2buey) $ abuey) Jabeuey alA 126png |enpy 1°6png

png 1n) png 1D £¢0¢ [443[d (404 TZ0T Te0¢
snbay uepy  ,sA bay uep

asuadxzy
z 9bed Wv 91:01
7202/1E/€0 s}senbay s o0poaiq juswtedag LHOMINNGINNIN



*sa01j0U Jljqnd pue ‘SUSWSSIBAPE
piq pue BuRINIdal 40} SISO UonedIgnd

%00° 00°0 00°005 000 00°00S HPEE 00°00S BuisiLApY $0-02
‘|elalew [euoewojul dqnd
pue ‘saoiou oyqnd ‘syuswpuswe
aoueulpio Aue Juud o3 pue saiddns
bunuud pue Jaded aseydind o)

%00° 00°0 00°008 000 007008 000 00°008 Bunuid 10-02
S9DIAIDG
¢0-ST 03 paAoy
%00°00T- 00°00S’¢€- 000 09%b2'C 00°00S'E 96'€T0°E 00°056C JoulsluT 90-ST
%09°6 00°/¢T 00°0SH'T 0c'ecs 00°€2E’T PLPOV'T 00°€ee’t 191em S0-ST

‘uojjeb/os c$ ® suedoad

4o suojeb poo‘z pue uojeb/ps ¢
® 1oy Buneay Jo suojieb 0p0’z

%9886 000969 00°000°pT L161E'S 00°0v0°Z 19'/61'9 00°095’S [ond BuiesH £0-51
*(006%) S3usWasINquial auoyd |20
pue (005'1$) suoyd Anp |12 “(005°9%)
201A19S J2Ul2)ut pue suoydajl

%9L'Ce 00'059'1 000068 15°85b'Y 00'0SZ°Z £9919'S 00°0S2’s PwiduI/euoyd Z0-ST
“INUdAY
poomyeag uo sbeleb Aemybiy
pio ay3 pue ‘suonels dwnd “qued
jusuiiear) sy} unt 03 S}S0d pajewnsy

%00° 00°0 00°00026 58'28/'€9 00°000°¢6 06°922'9Z 00'000°26 Apupalg 10-ST
salRN
‘sobelanod
ueld y3yjeay uo paseq St Jsuaq SiyL
%+ 61- 00°68€"1- 00°7£8°S pE1LS'S 0002’ 91°/41C 00°062°6 S994 B ViH 91-¢1

Q.LNOD Jo1emalsep / spund asudisqul 10~/ :AQfidag

o, abuey) $ abuey) Jabeuepy alA 1°bpng jenpy 126png

png 1n) png uun) £a0e (44174 ¢eoc Te0e 120¢
SA boy uep  ,SA bay uep

asuadxzy
¢ obed WY 9T1:0T
T202/1€/£0 sisonb3ay s,1002.41q Judwpedaq LHODINNGINNIN



souelnsup

"(1ed4 Jo Jrey) uorfoszs$
© 9bpns jo suo} OO parewnsy
%00°00T 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 00'0 000 000 00°0 buyney abpnis H-07
“(diI
Ajjend) 4232 pue ‘suonoadsul yuey
Jie pue Jaji0q ‘siojesado jueld ‘93
ab.eydsip MM |enuue) saay uoipadsul
pue 3su0i| 3Y3 e 104 Aed 0|

%00° 000 00°00T'v S8ST'T 007001V 86'989C 007001t Sasu=0IT 92-0¢
“voddns wajsAs wiepy
%00° 000 00°0S6'C w'ees 00°0S6°C 857995 00°056°C sulely §Z-0¢

"SPRIUOD DIAISS Aue 10) Aed 0 pue
juaLudinba uo yJom 03 saAneuasaIdal
SVIAIRS S Jainpenuew aay of

%00 000 00°0ST'S 00°0€€C 00°0ST’S 0r'STH'T 00°0ST’S SPeHUO) soueURUIRIY TZ-0¢
‘S[loM 1oMm
uopels dwnd ayj ues) dipy 03 XonJy
WNNOBA B YJIM JOPRIJUOD B Y O]

%6C 1 00°000'1 00°000'8 00°ShT’/L 00'000’Z 05°290'S 00°00079 SlISM I°oM souBUUIEl 0¢-0¢
"T4S3 pue (09%$)
suoinjos apna ‘(058$) a1emyos
ORL jo uonyod ‘(00/$) llemaild

%00 00°0 00'000°E 1£°686'T 00°000° 68°LLLT 00°000°C ABojouyda| 80-0Z
"}pne s,umoy o} Jo aJeys 300 Aed 0]
%00 00°0 00°00S’€ 00°00S'E 00°00S’E 00'005°E 00700S'€E 3pny £0-0¢

"SEDIAISS | T JO DJeyS 1500 10) ZST'TS
Sapnpul ‘yels sy Isisse o) papasu
S20IAIDS |euolssayoad JaLao pue [ebs
%00° 000 00°000'8 SS/bEY 0070008 6£°090°€T 00°009°€T Jeuoissajold/padxd 90-0

Q.LNQD Joyemaisep / spund asiidisug 10/ :AIQAdaq

9%, abueyd $ abueyd Jobeuepy alA 196png {enpoy 19bpng

png un) png 4an) €¢0¢ (4414 [441]4 Teoc T20¢
sabay uely  ,sA boy uep

asuadxy
 obed WY 9T:0T
ceoe/1e/eo s3sonbay s,10a11q Juswpedaq LHODINNGINNIN



‘uojjeb/ps’c$ © 19salp Jo suojleb 0po’s

%9°€c- 00°0S¢'c- 00700507 /6'81T°E 00°0S/'€T 62°£85’S 00°SZ0'TT [9saIg §Z-0¢
"uo||e6/05°c$
® aujjoseb Jo suojjeb 0g9't

%191 00°+TL 00°009'S YUERL'T 00988 10°0vC’E 00°000'% sen $2-0¢

"WSISAS UOIDB||0D
pue juejd Juswieal) sy} jetado
pue Jiedal 0] papasu S|oo) pueH

%00° 000 00°0+8’E 61°202'T 00°0+8’€ 191242 00°0+8°€ S|00] pueH 8T-0¢
-3sed} Jaido)
%4£9°9T- 00°00%- 00'000C 0t'09S'T 00°00tC T£HS5'T 00°00+"C Jaidooojoud S0-0€

*Buiddiys pue ‘souspuodsaiicd
‘Bujig 1oy 3500 abeysod

%00 000 00°000'C 09'8€T 00°000'C $€€08'T 00°000°C abeisod 10-0€
*saljddns pue juswdinba snosuej|osiiy

%00’ 00°0 00000 LS9y 00°000°C 09°'5€8°2 00°00S’€ wawdinb3 £0-0€
*sa)jddns 201J0 shodue|Isosi

%00° 000 00°008°T 86°08/'1 00°008'T £8'69b'E 00°008'T safddns 200 10-0€

wswdinb3g/fsanddng
‘wnwiaid Jo ateys

%CL 8- 00°056- 00°000°T PTPS8'T 00°056'T 0Z'STh'T 00°8bS'T S[eRWO JMqnd OT-S¢
‘wnijwaid jo aleys
%88°SS- 00°008'¢- 00°000°E ({3 X4%:] 00°008'9 9€°290°s 00+91°S P9 £0-6¢
‘wnjwasd jo aleys
%bl 1LY 00°008'ST 00°000'SZ L 6bT'TT 000026 8775658 00°01CCT Anqen 50-sz
‘wniwaid jo aleys
%LT 8- 00°€€6- 00°000'1 £8'665 00°€€6’T S6°899 00'9/8'1 JuawAholdwaun £0-62
‘winjwaad Jo aleys
%St L~ 00°'045°T- 00°000°S 85°/£8 00°0£5'61 $5'685°4T 00°000°6T dwoD SIBIOM 20-5Z

Q.LNOD soemalsep / spung ssudmwl 10-/b :mafideq

o, abuey) $ abueyd 1abeuely ali 196png |[endy jobpng

png un) png 4n) €¢0¢ (44114 (44114 Teoe T0¢
SA bay uel  ,SA bay uep

asuadxgy
S abed WV 9T:0T
7zoz/1s/co sisonbay s,J0p241q Judwedaq 1HOINNGINNIN



'suonels dwnd pue jueid
uswieal) ay) loy saiddns Buiuesp)

%00" 000 000057 12'008 00005t 18'915 00°00S’T saljddns sdueudquiely zg-0€
*ZZA4 ut poduy aoeds pauyuod Jo
aseyoind ayj 03 pesealdnsq -yuawdinba
U340 JO dduBUDUIRW pue
uawdinba Ayajes Jo aseyoind ayj o4

%ST 9~ 00°000"¢- 00°00S’E 18°690°1 0070059 £8'66L'C 00°008's juswdinb3 Aeyes 1€-0¢
'Yd3 SN 943 pue 43Q sulely
Aqg pasnbau bupise) soueldwod mau
10} sayddns juawdinba qge| Jo aseyound

%0S°/8 00°00S0T 00°005'22 ¥6°E8F'FT 00°000°CT £9'¥2S'0T 00°000°CT saiddng qe 0g-0€
*53500 BupPNI} pasea.oul pue
$)S0D |ELIa3eW [enide O} anp Pasealdu]
ueid Juswieas ay3 o uonesado ayy
10} pasn sjesiwsyd ayy sseyoand of

%00°SC 00°000'% 00°000°07 86°S+2'0T 00°000°91 9T ELP'ET 00°009°ZT $59204d S|eDIWRYD 6-0€
“ZZAd U pans|dwod Bulaq 1pafoid
uones dwnd 0} anp paonpay “wWaISAS
UOIID9J|0D 3L} JO dUBUIUIRW puR
uopelado ay3 J0j paIsn SI JUNOJDE Sy
%05°L€- 00°000°¢T- 00°000°0 88°06'FT 00°000°¢€ 18'8b5'8T 00°000°8T WRISAS uomDa|I0D 82-0€
"€20¢ Apes
spus uonesed “uogesado jsodwod
ay} ajessdo o) papasu Juswdinba
pue saijddns a3 aseyaind 0
%68°LS- 00°0S.°t- 00°000'C LT'6Er 00'0SLy [4 %42 00°0SL'y buisodwo) /z-0¢
d.1LNOD J91emalsep f spund asudimu 10-/p AIQAdsa

o, abuey) $ abueun Jabeuep alA 196png jenpy 196png

png unp png 4n) geoc [44s14 f44dir4 120¢ Tc0¢
sanbaoy uep  ,sA bay uep

asuadx3y

9 abeq WY 91:0T
zeoz/ig/so sisanbay s,10a.1q jJuswpiedaqg JAODANNGINNIN



%ES EC-

%00

%00°

%8E°6

%00°0t-

00°000°¢-

00°0

00°0

00°00S'T

007000t~

000059 0T v/8 00°005°8

0000097 P ETTT 00°000'9¢

0070097 00°s#0°'1 00°009°C

00°005°ZT 1€°£LL'S 00°00091

00°000'9 00°000't 00°000°0T

99°¢el’s

1€°61E'0C

616861

¥S'SYE'ET

S8peeel

0070009

00°000°9C

000097

00°0009T

00°000°01

30IAIBS g8
*ZZAd U1 9soy Jonal tomas
3y} Jo aseypind ayy 03 anp paseanaq
'sdwind pue ‘Ispeoj ‘siojesousb
d1qeqod ‘SapIYoA JO SdeUDUIR

uswdinb3 8 SaPIYaA £0-SE
-uepd Juswiea.y a3 Je Juawdinba
pue sbuipjing 1oy saljddns pue syued

sbuipiing 10-5€
2oueuAUIRW/SAIeday
*sual| Jamas buly yum
Po1BIDOSSE SIS0D S} pue Sjjiq Jomas
Bunuud 10j S3S02 || J9A0D 03 pasn
suar B sbui|ig 6£-0¢
*s1s00 buiddiys pue [eu3ew
paseaJouy 0} NP Paseasdu] “wisAs
uoa||00 a3 pue jueld Juswiesn
9y} WO} SIOpPO [0JjU0d O} papasu
juawdinba pue sayddns sseyond o
[0Quo) J0PO #E-0E
Y444
Apes uy uonelado bupsodwiod ay)
JO UOREeNUIUOISIP 9Y) 0} anp paonpay
-suonesado Bupsodwod ayy ut
pasn saiddns pue yse oig JO aseydingd

ysy-01g £€-0€

A.1NOD J21emalsepd f spung asudisyug 10-/b :AIQAdsa

% 9bueyd
png un)
SA boy uepy

[ 9bed
7202/1€/€0

$ abueyd
png Ln)
+SA boy uepy

Jobeuely alA 18bpng
£e0e ceoe (44114

osuadx3y

lenpy
1202

sysonbay s,1003.11q Jusawpedag

39bpng
1202

Wv 9T1:0T
TAODINNGINNIA



%00°

%Z6'ECy

%00°8¢TT

%9L°LT-

%/8"

000

00°218°L

00°€££°9€

00°TEC-

00°v61

00°000°0E

00'199°6

00'+5S’6E

00°0£0'1

008857

00°000°0€

¥5'SkE°0T

6/'%88'86

8€'1SC'E

8£°€86'GS

00°000°0€

00'b8'T

00'TZZ'E

00°T0ET

00'v6£'CC

00°000°0¢

£5°€pS8E

00°0

9TbPL'E

000

Kol

UMO} 33 JB SISOD SAREJISUIWPE 3y
39540 0 puny |elouab aiy) 03 Jajsuel |

00'000°0€ duejeg pund Jo asn H£-0S

snoaue|Rosiii

"(TyAd
ul Aunjew) saxey Auadoad Aq papuny
9509 BuiuieWwal 243 YIM ‘asuadxas
S0IAISS 1qop [e10] 3] JO %0 S|
SIYL "%T @ SiA 02/000°000°2$ :d9IN

00°£08'6T T20¢ 1omas Jsalaju] Z2z-St
(TbAd
ul Aqumew) saxe} Apadosd Aq papuny
%09 Bululewa. Y3 yum ‘ssuadxa
SDIAISS 1g9P |€10] 3 JO %0 SN
Syl ‘%7 @ SJA 0Z/000°000°Z$ :99WIN

000 T20T 1eMmsS ¢T-Sb
"(bzAd W Aunjew)
saxey Auadoid AQ papuny 94,09
Buiutewal 3yl Yum ‘asuadxe a0IAISS
19°p |€30} 343 JO %0t S)o=ad SIYL
"%SZ'7 © S!4 02/000°000°T$ :9GWW

00°209'1 €00¢ puog 1oMas Isalaluf £0-Sb
"(FeAd ui Agunyeuwr)
saxe) Apadoid Aq papuny 9409
Buiulewa. ayy yum ‘ssuadxs adIARS
19°p [e101 313 JO %0t SIPBNRI SIYL
"%S2°7 ® S1A 02/000°000°T$ 99N

00°€80°C2 £00¢ puog Jomas £0-Str

Q.LNOD 421emalsep / spund asudseiul 10-z :Mafdag

g obeyg
Teoe/1e/e0

9% 9bueyd
png un)
SA boy uey

$ abuey)
png n)
+SA bay uepy

Jabeueyy
£20¢

QLA
eoe

s)ysonbay s,10311q Juswpedaq

196png
720t

asuadx3y

fenpy
1202

39bpng
Teoe

WV 9T1:01
LHOANNGINNIA



6 2bed
T20z/1€/€0

%t0'0T 00°€0T'L2T 00'9%0€6£"T 05°591°€66 00°€¥6'S9T'T 10°065'801°T 00°£29°2€2'T JOJeMIISEM
%EE ey 000059 00700582 000 00°000'ST 000 00°0 amasay fende) G0-09
"SJOXIW D)qISIaWwgns JO Juawsoe|day
%C6™ LY 00°0000t- 00°000°0S EEPET'EL 00°000'96 0T EsT've 00°0b6'C9 juawdinb3 jepded $0-09
soseydind
"Wwashs
UOIID3}I0D Jomas ay3 Jo buidey oapia
%00° 00°0 00°000°2 LE 00°000°Z 000 00°000°£ spafoud [epads 98-05
Q. LNOD J91emajsep / spund asudssuz 10-£y :AQfideg
o, 9buey) 4 abueyn J1obeuepy alA 18bpng jeny 196png
png Jin) png 4inj £€e0c [44\14 (44014 T¢0¢ Tc0c
sAboy uep  ,SA bay uep
asuadxgy

s1senbay s,4010041q Juswedaqg

WV 9T:0T
FAODINNGINNIA



%t0°0T 00°€0T'/21 00°9+0°E6E°T 1€°07£'89 00°Ek6°S9Z'T S'E9T'PHE’T 00°€C9'£€T'T Jomasg
%00° 00°0 000 000 000 £9°€0£°TT 000 Spaadold puog 971
%00 000 0070 00°000'12 00°0 0000599 00°0 JAIDSIY uonnjjod 191em 1
pung
|eJouan) By 0] I3suel) 03 Junowy
%00° 000 00"000'SE 000 00°000°SE 000 00°000°S€E aouejeg pung Jomas g1
%00 000 000 00°0VT'Y 000 00°0bT'ET 00°0 S994 uonedljddy 171
%00 00'0 000 99°'S/6 00'0 19°60S'T 000 IS3UD] Jomas 60
%00 000 000 18'268'T 000 ob'6b'T 000 S84 Jamag Jusnbulieq 90
‘So9) I9sh IomMoeS
%6E' 00'0Z£'eS 00'9£L°EHT’T 96°68%'T 00'9TH'T6T'T 0£°60F'16T°T 00'960°T9T'T S84 JaMaS JuaLn) S0
%00 000 000 00°0 000 8T 000 SNOSUE|[RISI JOMIS 10
"xe} Auadoud woyy pasies uoipod 1
%89°£0T 00°€82°¢/ 00°0TE60T 00°£25°SE 00°£25°S€E 00°£25'SE 00°225°SE U siajsuel] Jomas £0
'SpUny paJSaAUl UO PaUIes SWOdU]T
%00°SZ 00°000'1 00°000°S 88¥82'c 00°000"% 62 HEE'0T 00°000’9 DWODUT JUSLUISBAU] 19MaS T0
Jomas [ asudiul o/-pT :Mgfdeq
o, Sbueyd $ abuey) J1abeuepy alA 196png jenpy 196png
png 1n) png unj £¢0c €20 (4414 T20¢C 120¢
sAboy uely  ,sA bay uep
SNUIADY
T abed WV €0:0T
ceoz/1e/co 3sanbay jobpng LAODINNGINNIN



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Special Revenue - Recreation ltem 7

Code Project Revenue Expense Payroll Fica

1000 |After School Pﬁagrams_ ' ' |

1001 After School Adventures | 47,600 5000 17,340 1,327 23,933
1002 Early Release Wednesdays 8,200 3,795, 1,530 117 2,758
55800 8,795 18,870 1,444 26,691

2000 Rentals T ]
2001 /Rentals | 1000 0 300 j’__ 677

3000|Special Events

3004/Egg Hunt 1,140 3000 o 0 840
3005 Pumpkin Smash | a0 375 0 0 25
3006 Concerts | 1600 1,200 0O 0 400
3007 Prelude Craft Fair | 690 250 0 0 6710
3309 ZombieDash | 1,19 35 0 0 1,155
3010 Twinkle Trolley Event 285 150 a 0 135
R 11575 2310 0 0 9,265
4000 Camps | 1
4001-Summer Camp 78,750 11,440 45,852 3,508 17,950
4002 Marine Science Camp 8,300 7,500 0 0| 800
4003 December Vacation Camp | 19200 150 456 35| 1,279
4004|February Vacation Camp 2,600 1,200 562 43 795
4005 | April Vacation Camp 2,600/ 1,200 562 43| 795
4008 Outdoor Adventures | 18,900 6,004 4,080 312] 8,504
] 113,070 27,494 51,512 3,941[ 30,123
5000 Preschool & Youth i
5001 Parents Night Out 810 %% 333 2; 362
5002 Fall Outdoor Adventures 4,000 120 612 47 3221
5003 Spring Outdoor Adventures 4,000 120 612 47| 3,221
| 8810 330 1,557 119 6,804

6000 Adults & Seniors | I . -
- _6%1:S_enior Lunche_s_ B | 5,100/ 3,540 0 0. 1,560
__ 6002|Senior Trips 3,360 2,632 0 0 728
0

8,460 6,172 0 2,288

7000 Sports & Fitness

7001 Youth Basketball 4172 2,154 667 51 1,300
7002 Adult Basketball N 384 51 o o 333
7003 Adult Volleyball 384 51 0 0 333
7004 Youth Fall Soccer 10,661 3,067 o6 0 7,594
7005 Youth SpringSoccer | 5333 1533 0 0 3800
7007 Zumba 3,840 0 1,400 107 2,333
~ 7008 Yoga 2,000 1,400 0 0 600
7009 Little Laxer | 4620 1,411 0 0 3209
7010 Floor Hockey 2,000 552 240 18] 1,190
7011 Pickleball | 3,900 156 0 0 3,744
7012 Field Hockey 4,180 1,172 0 0 3,008
7013 Tennis - | 4200 3,080 0 0 1,120
~ 7014TeenSkiTrips | 3585 2,821 0 0 764
7015 Rink Use 0 4200 0 0 (4,200)
[ | 49259 21648 2,307 | 176 25,128

8000 Tournaments | | I
8001 Hockey Tournament | 1,740 200 0 0 1540
8002 Curling Tournament | 940| 306 o 0 634
8003 Dodgeball Tournament | 5,440 852 0| 0 4,588
| | 8120 1,358 0 0 6762
9000 Scholarships . _ B I
9001 Scholarships 4,000 4000 0 0| 0

| |
| Totals | 260,094 72,107 74546 5703 107,738
|

~ |Software Fee ) J | | | (4,395)
Custodian — _ | | | (4,870)
Dues |Tennis/Sam's Club/Music/Constant Contact  (1,305)
Turf Maintenance | | 1 . | (3,885)
:Transfer to Gen Fund | | ; __ (e0,000})

33,283




Special Revenue
Recreation
FY23 Budget

Programs

After School Programs 26,691

Rentals 677

Special Events 9,265

Camps 30,123
Preschool & Youth 6,804
Adults & Seniors 2,288
Sports & Fitness 25,128
Tournaments 6,762

Scholarships 0
Net Program Income 107,738
Expenses

Dues (1,305)
Custodian (4,870)
Turf Maintenance for Parsons Field (3,885)
Software (4,395)
General Expenses (14,455)
Net Budget 93,283
Transfer Out to General Fund (60,000)

Balance 33,283




%8S°ES 00°bb2'06 00°+60°092 00°+60°09¢ b6'9LZ9ST 00°0SE"69T 68'S81°192 00°658'TET uopes.oy
%00° 000 000 000 00°0T 000 000 000 sjuswAedisa0 05
%05'bS 00°b+2'16 0060092 00°60°09¢ 6L L9'bST 00°0S€E°89T SE'094'65¢C 00°658°0€T s994 7
%00°00T- 00°000T- 00°0 000 ST'619' 00°000'T bS'STLT 00°000°T SUOISSUC) SO
uoRea.DDY / DASY pund anNuUASY |epads ££-0T :AIg/Adaq
% obueyy  §obueyy  Iebeuep leniu ala 1o6png lenpy 396png
pnguny  pngun) €202 €207 70T 720e 1202 1202
snboy uey  ,sA bay uep
anuaAay
£ 9beqd WY €48
zeoz/se/€0 3senbayj yobpng L1HOINNGINNIN



*sasuadxa Juaaa weiboid ||y

/ abed
zeoe/se/so

%18'59 00°079’82 00°£0T°2L £9°T6'LT 00°/8b'ct 76'895°7¢ 00°Z6b'8 SuaA3 wedbold bI-05
%00 00°0 000 000 000 00°0s 00°8¢8 snoaue|Rosiy 10-08
Snoaue|[R0SIW
%00°00T1- 00°£80'T- 000 £V 6L 00°€80'T 06'€Z8 00°£SS [°selq §Z-0¢
%00°00T- 00°0S1'T- 00°0 94766¢ 00°0ST'T FAS 74 & 00°5¢¢ sed ve-0¢
juawdinbg/sanddng
'so9) weibold >oyApW
%00°00T 00°S6€ 'y 00'S6€"y 00°0 00°0 000 000 Abojouypa | 80-0¢2
‘puny
jeJauab woly paAoLw dueudjuIRW JIN|
%00°007 00°588’¢€ 00°588°€ +8'15¢ 000 e'80¢ 00°0 jeuoissajoid/Hadg 90-0¢
SIS
sdiyssoquiaw pue
sanp JisnLw pue ‘gnp) s,Wes ‘siuus i
%00°00T 00°S0€'T 00°S0£’T 000 00’0 00°0 00'0 s924 B sonQ@ 90-¢1
"(%59°2)
VDI4 03 uonnguiuod s aiojduwl
Y%LLEE 00°£2S'T 00°6+0°9 9gSIE’E 00228’y 9°'679'C 00'952°2 VO 10-¢T
Sjijeuag
sweiboid |je 10§ sabep
%90°S8.{ 00°020'cL 00°9vS'vL SZ'998 009251 000 00000 sjuaA3 wesboid ZT1-01
%00 000 000 £4°S0T'T 00°0 [6°/L8 00°0 SWILBAQ 0T-0T
%00°00T- 00°0Z1'ST- 000 PL7€98'Y 00°0ZT'ST 96'vb6'/E 00°sz/L'01 SolejeS |00UDS 1oy 80-01
%00°00T- 0029k - 00°0 LETEPE 00°79v ¢k [9°619°8 00799491 sallejes Lwwns 90-01
ueipolsnd 10j sabep
%007001 00°v2Sy 00'+2S'y 902LT°C 000 000 000 sabem 1 salefes 10-01
[PUUOSIad
uoneaIIDY / SPUN anUaARY |epads £e-¢F :AIqAdag
o, 9buey) $ abuey) Jobeuep alA 106png [enpy 196png
png 1n) png un) £€¢0¢ (44114 [44174 Te0c T20¢
SA bay uep |, SA bay uep
asuadxy

s3sonbay s,40002.1q Judwpedaq

WY 1+:8
LAODINNGINNIN



g abeyd
Te0z/se/e0

%E6'EE 00°19¥£S 00'118'92¢ TZ°0b6'SET 00°05£°69T £0'665'VET 00'658'1€T uones.nsy
‘pung jeisudy) 03 Jajsuel]
%00 000 0000009 00°000°09 00°000°09 00°000°09 00°000°09 O Iaysuel) £2-09
d.LNOD uoneaIday / spund anusasy [enads ¢e-c 1AIQfAdaq
9, Sbuey) $ obueyn Jobeuep aiA 1ebpng jenpy 106png
png 1n) png n) £e0¢ [44174 (44174 T¢0C Te0c
SA boy uely  ,sA bay uepy
asuadxgz

sysonbay s,1018.41q Judwtedaq

WV T+:8
LHODINNGIANNIA



€C0C Ad
193png

9NUIARY |el12adS
uolleaJday




punj |esauas SpuaJl yum sasuadxa paje|al
0] P3AOW 3NUIASI SSIIXJ a3ueyd pue joaid 01 AujIqy pue sweJigdoud 40} pasn

(Uswioa|es Ag panoidde) 193png anuaAay |eldadg




AAICIVELS

%1 S|ejuay e

%9 %9 YINOA %6

sjusiieuinol M 3 jooyossid [SIUSAT |eisads

%ETZ SSaUll4 %GZ sweidoid
g suods |00Y2S 121 %8¢ sdwe Sa110831e)

198png
9NUIAY |e123dS




90UBUIJUIRIA JUN]

weisoid jlews 10e3U0) JULISUOD)
‘@sua217 2ISNIA ‘gnD) s,wes ‘YISN — sang

ueipolsn) 3uipjing

994 948M1JOS UOIIE.IISISAY m@mcwaxm
oNUIADY
soljddns weido.d _m_uwam




SS9|pPpuU3 aleé Slijauag 9] — Uuolilealday

'sd1J} JOIUDS puk |00YIS Pal1epljosuo)

1e wniseuwAs ayy ui pjay sweadoud ul-doip }jnpe pue Jie4 MNON Ad
1jelD apnjaid Sulpnjoul S93110ABS 3Y3 ||€ d2eq Sulig 01 nuilu0)

‘sdwed uolledeA Jooyas pue suoayaunj Joluas ‘syiods
‘sdwed Suipnjoul Sujwwesdosd swos doeq 3uiduliq uedag ¢C0C A

‘'sAep 3ujuies] 910WaJl UO SJUSBPNIS

10} J91U3J |[00Y2S 310wl /ai1edp|iyd Aep-||e papiroid am uaym T120Z Ad
TZNSY Yyum diysiaunied ayl 01 anp 123png poodxa Sanuanay




)

: _ .. ,U

"
angunt®




AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Cape Porpoise Pier

FY23 Budget ltem 8
FY19 Fy19 FY20 FY20 FY21 Fy21 FY22 FY22 FY23
Budget  Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget 2,28.22 Proposed
Revenues

Mooring fees 7,000 6,315 8,820 7,380 6,840 7,800 7,560 405 12,060
Miscellaneous 0 308 0 611 0 1,581 0 265 0
Diesel 175,000 155,186 176,320 181,789 190,125 167,337 216,640 163,917 303,750
Gas 19,500 24,560 19,750 33,492 28,889 31,984 34,375 41,817 60,750

Loss of Fuel Revenue/Pier Construction
Dues 50,613 50,736 53,223 50,099 52,093 42,996 46,652 45,104 50,800
Lease 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 30,000 40,000
Use of fund balance 3,529 0 20,962 0 0 0 0 0 0
Write Offs 0 0 0 0 0 (1,355) 0
Total Revenues 295,642 276,910 319,075 309,546 317,947 291,698 345,227 280,153 465,360

More or (less) actual received vs budgeted:

Expenses
Salaries/wages 62,932 59,333 62,117 64,453 64,796 64,981 66,749 43,813 57,925
FICA 5,507 4,440 6,153 4,509 5,040 4,601 5,192 3,125 4,520
MSRS 0 0 5,192 5,368 5,514 5,725 5,793 3,712 5,908
ICMA 2,944 4,339 0 1,073 1,092 1,130 1,125 725 1,158
Health 8,034 16,603 19,032 19,004 20,314 17,908 20,314 13,118 20,913
Travel/meetings 400 199 400 843 0 298 0 705 1,000
HRA & fees 0 276 1,706 1,508 1,386 1,438 1,386 2,099 1,386
Electricity 5,500 4,014 5,500 5,241 5,000 6,090 6,800 4,626 7,000
Telephone/Internet 2,180 2,413 2,180 2,736 2,130 2,646 2,560 1,644 2,550
Heating fuel 1,500 634 1,500 422 920 531 750 531 750
Water 750 311 650 467 690 210 500 34 500
Expert/professional 100 741 900 602 800 2,749 900 1,080 1,100
Audit 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500
Technology 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,200
Licenses 600 1,448 650 1,846 650 340 650 40 650
Waste removal 2,200 1,422 2,200 3,654 4,100 4,617 4,100 5,560 9,500
Insurance 4,000 4,020 4,140 2,274 1,695 5,627 4,600 3,737 7,020
Office supplies 300 401 150 91 50 0 50 0 50
Operating supplies 2,500 1,409 2,000 286 1,000 576 1,000 666 1,000
Gas 17,875 21,450 17,775 29,384 25,000 25,798 28,750 40,280 52,500
Diesel 162,500 140,685 159,790 158,888 169,650 138,297 186,175 137,418 262,500
R&M buildings 1,000 1,328 1,000 3,681 750 30 750 167 750
R&M vehicles/equip 4,000 8,588 1,500 3,840 1,000 3,581 1,000 647 1,000
Float maintenance 500 0 500 0 500 214 500 0 500
Pier maintenance 1,000 846 1,000 2,549 625 2,335 625 3,573 2,500
Miscellaneous 1,020 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bad Debt 0 0 640 0 0 0 0
Diesel tax 2,800 2,937 3,540 4,442 3,810 3,034 3,810 3,358 4,220
Loss on Sale 0 14,583 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital equipment 5,000 13,127 19,000 8,645 935 835 648 0 0
Depreciation 0 17,253 0 16,149 0 16,760 0 0 16,760
Total Expenses 295,642 321,831 319,075 343,094 317,947 309,370 345227 271,157 465,360
More or (less) actual expensed vs budgeted: 26,189 24,019 (8,577)
Net +/- (44,921) (33,549) (17,672) (o)
Money made on Fuel: 18,675 22,566 32,192 24,678 43,280

Y:\Budget FY 23\Requests\Chris Mayo\FY23 Pier.xlsx



xsx'131d €ZA4\OABII SIYD\SI1SaNbay\eZ Ad 193png\:A

00°090°C}

00°090°¢
00°000'6

619)
oS

7€'80L°1
60029

1 18'996

81'Gv9

05°¢

0S¢

Uojeb/aold

UORONLSUOY Jald/SSOT ASY

(0) 10N
09£°Go¥ asuadx3 [ejo)
09¢‘sop anuaAay [ejoL
000°7 ases
78'662°06
1G7.6°) 00221
17148 00201
8eeey'y 007
61°08%'2 00Y
00'200°LE 002
Zyeeeol 009}
1dD %6°. Pappe
SlesN o #
00'005'79¢ 00'000°GLE
00°052°€0€ 00008292
00'05209 - 00°005°25
SNUBASY mwcmmxm
00'005' Ly 00°000°06
(000002)
00'052' LY 100062
00062'8 000Gl

suojje

00'%¢
00001
SJasM JO #

ECAd

qq'0
G50

0006

0006

0

Lzz'sve
Lzz'sve

000°0v

rANAS T

00°0£8'}
00°6€G
09'180°€
09'862°C
26'/25°0¢
00'6.€'8

1°N

asuadx3 |ejo)
3aNUDA3Y |ejo)

ases

0022l

0020}
00e
00’y
00vC

001
IdD %9’ Pappe

siasM jo #

00'610°152 | 00626'712
000%9'912 - 00°621'981
00'GLEVE 00'05.'8¢

anuandy asuadx3
00°060'9¢
00°69%'0¢€ 00229
00'629'S 005°C)

00095°2

00°090°¢
007006y

suojjen

00'tvE
00001
slasn Jo #

Z¢ Ad

006G}

00§

02220}

LR ZAY

89268

06865

6T

0e¢
uojebyadig

K0

S0

0006

006y

SLWINnJIp BJJXd
sjeoq enxe
siaeaq
ung

sjeoq big
[euonealday

jasalg
seo

[8salq
seo

sJajem daag

SISjem [epi]
sBupoop

lald asiodiod aden




%08'+E 00°€€T'0ZT 00°09¢°59% LE'SPE'68T 00°£2T'Spe 96'£69'162 00°Lb6'LTE Jad
%00" 000 000 60°S5€°T- 000 000 000 SO SM 0E
%00 00°0 00'000°0t 00°000°0€ 00°000°0% 00°000°0t 00°000°0% 95637 Jold 60
%688 00°8KT'Y 00°008°0S LLE0T'SE 00°259'9% +0"966 ¢t 00°€60°2S ssnqQ Jold £0
%EL 9L 00°S££°9¢ 00°05£09 71'855°6€ 00°SLEYE 8T'+86'TE 00°688'8C se9 Jald 90
%626 00°0TT'S8 00'05£'10€ 64£5E'SLT 00°0t9'912 £5'9€€°£9T 00°SZT’06T [9s31Q 481d S0
%00 000 000 8/'GLe 000 LT 185'T 00°0 SnosuejEdsiy 8id #0
%CS 65 00°005% 00'090°2T 00°S0t 00°095'£ 00°008°Z 00°0+8'9 s394 buuool zo
BId / ssudiug 1/-b1 :AgAdeq
9%, 9buey) $ abuey) Jobeuepy alA 196png jenpy 196png
png 1np png .nD £c0e (44114 c0T T¢0¢ Teoe
sAboy uely  ,SA bay uep
SNUIAIY
7 obed WV £0:0T
ceoe/1g/co 3sonbay 1o6png LIOANNGINNIA



%t6'C

%00
%00"
%00'00T

%56'C

%€E6°C

%66°T

%v6°CT-

%CTET-

00°00Z

00'0
000
00°000°T

00°66S

00°€E

00°STT

007¢/9-

00'+28's-

0070002

00'98€'T
000
00°000'T

00°€16°0T

00'8ST'T

00'806'S

00°0Z5"t

00'S26°LS

12929

74202’
00°50£
66'TLT

88°LTT'ET

¥0°'T18

LS'SSTY

1T°9TH'E

88'880°8k

00°008"9

00'98€’T
00°0
000

00°+1€°0C

00'SZT’T

00°€6£’S

00'Z61'S

00°6%£'99

S'060'9

66°LEV'T
00°SET
197291

64°£06'LT

8C°0ET’T

6¢'SeL’s

00109t

/50869

00°000°S

00'98€’1
000
000

00°¥1€°0C

00°Z60'T

00'b15'S

00°0+0°S

00°96'+9

ApLPaa 10-6T
sanlinn

“1obeuely J21d 10} SIS0D ViH

5994 8 VUH 91-C1

uoneonp3 g buutes) 80-ZT

sBuneal 8 [oARIL £0-ZT
1500 33 JO %ST SSINQLIU0D
gaholdw3 "£zZ07 JedA Jepusjes
ul Buluubaq asea.uoul 94,07 palewnss
ue sapnpul 3186pnq siy] “Jedh
JBpUIIED LIBD 135 DIB S9jeJ WinwRlgd
‘00S Odd - 96e19A0D aduensul Y)jeaH

UllesH S0-¢T
*saahoidwd 9|qibid 10§
uejd uonesuadwod paLRJRP /S YIWDI
VIWOI £0-TT
"JusWRINRY NeIS
suiely 403 UoRNQLIUOD S JaA0jdLg
SUYSKW 20-¢T
(%59°2)
WOI4 410J uonnqliuod s akojdw3
VO 10-C1
Syjauag
‘Sjuspusye
Bupped 93 spuny osje siyl -junoxe
JajseuwogieH Aajes algnd pund
[elauan) Syl Ul %07 Buuiewsa. auy
Yam sobeuely Jald 10 sabem Jo 94,08
sobep g sauefes 10-01
[PuUUOSIDd

1914 asiodiod ader / spund asudisyug z0-/¢ :Ag/Adeq

9, abueyd
png 4n)
SA bay uep

0T 2bed
zeoe/1e/€0

$ abueyd
png n)
4SA bay uepy

Jabeuejy
1 XAV

ata
[€4V14

1obpng
720z

asuadxzy

lenpy
T20e

sysenbay s, 10311 Juswpedag

19bpng
T20¢

WY 9T:01
LAOAINNGINNIA



11 obed
7202/1€/50

%00°00€ 00'6/8'T 00°005°Z 6£°108°¢ 00529 H0'SEE'T 00'529 dueuI I J8ld 60-5E
%00° 000 00°00S 000 00°00S 8EH1T 00°00S SdueualuIely 18Ol 80-5€
%00" 000 00°000°T 60’249 0070001 0T'185°€ 00°000°1 juawdinb3 3 SOPIYSA £0-5€
%00° 000 00°0SZ 95°9971 00°0SZ 9%'06 00°0SZ sbuipjing 10-5¢
adUeUUIRK fsneday
"uojieb/s/ z$
® [osalp Jo suojieb 000’s/
%00°TH 00°sze'os 00°005°292 60°8TH'2ET 00'5/1°981 60°£6T'8ET 007059691 [@sa1Q S2-0€
"uojjeb/05°z$ ® seb jo suojjeb 000’sT
%1978 00'05£'€C 00°00S°ZS 000820 00°0S£'8¢2 ££°'86/'ST 00°000°SZ se9 4Z-0€
%00" 000 0070007 76'599 00°000'T 117945 00°000°T saliddng bunesado z0-0€
%00° 00'0 00°0S 000 00°0S 00°0 0005 salddns s0W0 10-0€
yuawdinb3/salddng
%1928 00°0Z+'C 0070202 00°£S¥C 00°009'p 00°205y 00°S69°T 4930 60-52
%00° 000 000 86'6/2'T 000 LYTTT 00°0 Anqger 50-65¢
[VURINSUT
%ILTET 00°00t'S 00°005°6 S5°854°9 007001y 89919 007001 [erowoy 91SeM 82-02
%00° 00'0 00°059 00°06 00°059 00°0bE 00°059 S95UDI 92-02
%00°00T 00°002'1 00°002'T 000 000 000 000 ABojouyda| 80-0¢
%00’ 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 007005 00700 upny £0-0¢
%LL'IT 00002 00°001°T £5°080°T 00°006 16'8bL'2 007008 [euoissajoid/Hedx3 90-0Z
S30INIDG
%00°0071- 00°00£'1- 0070 9 B/T'T 0000’1 8650’1 00°0£€’T J2uIRlUI 90-GT
%00 000 00°00S 9T'bE 00°005 61°0TC 00°069 191BM S0-ST
%00 000 00°0S/ 82°9¢9 00°05Z ¥1'TES 00°026 [eng Buneay £0-ST
*@JIALDS Jollpjul pue auoyd
%TS'96T 00°069°T 00°0S5'C 69°LEL 00'098 66'656 00°008 PwduIBUoYd Z0-ST
G,LNOD Jaid 3siodiod ade) / spung aspdisiul zo-/y :AldAdaq
o, 2bueYy) $ obueyd Jabeuep QLA 1°6png lenpy 196png
png un) png un) £20¢ zeoe Teoe 120 1202
sA boy uel  ,SA bay uep
Isuadxy

s3sanbay s, 1010041q Juswpedaq

WV 9T:01
JHOMNNGINNIA



%08"VE 00°€€T'02T 00°09€'S9% 0£°18€'84C 00°£22'SPE £8'69£'60€ 00°/¥6'LTE a4 asiodiod aded
%00°00T 000991 00"09/'97 000 000 £1°09./91 000 uonepaldaqg 10-59
uonenaidag
%00 000 00°0 000 00°0 000 00°S€6 anIesay |ended S0-09
%00°00T- 00°89- 000 000 00°89 07'S€8 000 Juawdinby [ended $0-09
saseyaind
‘[ony 2|gexe)} uo xej sajes 9)els
%9/°01 00°0TH 00702’y 06°/8€'E 00°018°€ £9°€€0°E 00°0T8'E Xe| [osalg £€-05
%00° 00°0 000 000 000 SETHS'T- 000 asuadxg 199 peg 92-0S
SNODUR||SISIW
Q.INOD 1914 asiodiod ade) / spund ssudisyuy ¢o-/+ :AdfAdaq
o abueyd $ abuey) labeueyy ala 196png |lenpy 126png
png 4np png un) £€coc (4414 (44074 Tcoe 1¢0C
sanbayuep  ,SA bay uepy
asuadx3

21 abeq
ze0z/1£/€0

sysanbay s, 103.41q Juswpedaq

WV 9T:0T
LHOANNGINNDI



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 9

Municipality of Kennebunkport
Conflict of Interest Policy for Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Projects
2 CFR § 200.318

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish conflict of interest guidelines that meet
requirements under 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1) for procuring goods, services, and
construction or repair projects funded in whole or part by federal Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds received pursuant to the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”){Pub. L. No. 117-2,
March 11, 2021).

Policy

This policy applies when the municipality procures goods (apparatus, supplies, materials,
and equipment), services, and construction or repair projects funded in part or whole with
federal Local Fiscal Recovery Funds received pursuant to the American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA). This policy also applies to any subrecipient of the ARPA funds.

The employee(s) or official(s) responsible for managing the ARPA award shall review the
notice of award to identify any additional conflict of interest prohibitions or requirements
associated with the award, and shall notify all employees, officers, officials and agents,
including subrecipients, of the requirements of this policy and any additional prohibitions
or requirements.

A. Conflicts of Interest. No officer, official, employee, or agent of the municipality may
participate directly or indirectly in the selection, award, or administration of a contract
supported by ARPA funding if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. A
real or apparent conflict exists when any of the following parties has a financial or
other interest in or receives a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for
award of a contract:

1. the employee, officer, official or agent involved in the selection, award, or
administration of a contract;

any member of his or her immediate family;
his or her partner; or
an organization which employs or is about to employ any of these parties.

Any officer, official, employee or agent with an actual, apparent, or potential conflict of
interest as defined in this policy shall report the conflict to his or her immediate
supervisor or, in the case of a board member, shall make disclosure to at a duly noticed
board meeting. Any such conflict shall be disclosed in writing to the federal award
agency or pass-through entity in accordance with applicable U.S. Treasury (awarding

agency) policy.



Gifts. Officers, officials, employees, and agents of the municipality are prohibited
from accepting or soliciting gifts, gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value
from contractors, suppliers, or parties to subcontracts. Items of nominal value valued
at less than $25 which fall into one of the following categories may be accepted:

1. promotional items;

2. honorariums for participation in meetings; or

3. meals furnished at banquets.

Any officer, official, employee or agent who knowingly accepts an item of nominal
value allowed under this policy shall report the item to his or her immediate
supervisor, or in the case of a board member, to the board.

Hi. Violation

Employees or appointed officials violating this policy will be subject to discipline
consistent with applicable policy, charter, ordinance or law, which may include
termination or removal from office. Elected officials violating the policy may be subject
to censure or other penalty consistent with any municipal charter. Violation of this policy
by a contractor or subrecipient may result in breach or termination of the contract and
will impact the contractor’s eligibility for future contract awards.

Adopted by the Municipal Officers on April 14, 2022.

Signature Date
Signature Date
Signature Date
Signature Date
Signature Date



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
MAINE

— INCORPORATED 1653 —

Short-Term Rental Update

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
From: Eli Rubin, Community Planner
Date: 4/14/2022

CC: Werner Gilliam, Andrew Welch

As of April 11th

405 total licenses have been issued
$175K generated in registration fees

338 unique license holders

7 applicants obtained 3 licenses each

23 applicants obtained 2 licenses each

109 licenses (27%) granted to town residents
Approx. 3 unregistered STR currently advertised

Late Registration

7 applications approved during late registration extension
3 applications denied for ineligibility

Public Reminders

Code enforcement will contact property owners and property managers to

Item 10

schedule rental unit inspections. The ordinance requires inspections every 5 years,

therefore not every unit will be inspected every year. This process will start in

May.
To report a suspected violation at a short-term rental property
please call 24/7: (207) 204-3980. Or to register a complaint online visit;

* https://secure.hostcompliance.com/kennebunkport-me/complaints/type

Setting a Cap
 Staff is seeking requests for the types of information that would be useful to help

the Board in its future discussions around annual license limits.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
MAINE

— INCORPORATED 1653 —

Enforcement
e All complaints are investigated by first communicating with the property owner,
property manager, and/or Police Department.
¢ We have been working with property owners and complainants to find
resolutions to the complaints we have already received. As we work through
these complaints, staff are establishing what criteria will elevate these complaints
to be brought before the board.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




MAINE

Lobstermen’s Association, Inc.

2 Storer St, Ste 203 « Kennebunk, ME 04043
Phone: 207-967-4555 « Fax: 866-407-3770
www.mainelobstermen.org

March 17, 2022

Laurie Smith

Town Manager

PO Box 566
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Dear Laurie,

The Maine lobster fishery is in the battle of its life, and the Maine Lobstermen’s Association
(MLA) is going head-to-head with the federal government to save the industry. Lobstering is
important to the future of your community, instrumental to our way of life, and vital to
maintaining the qualities that make Maine the place we call home.

We're asking for your help.

The problem is that the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) has stamped Maine’s lobster
fishery with an expiration date. Our industry could be wiped out within the next decade
because of a flawed 10-year plan released last year that is intended to help protect the
endangered North Atlantic right whale. However, the plan is based on erroneous data, and
won'’t protect the whale. In other words, a lose-lose.

However, we need to prove this in court. Last fall, MLA filed a lawsuit in U.S. District Court in
Washington, DC and is suing NMFS and the U.S. Secretary of Commerce. We're asking the court
to force the government to come up with a new plan based on sound science that would
protect both the whale and the lobster industry. A win-win!

Maine’s lobster fishery is made up of nearly 5,000 independently owned, small businesses from
Kittery to Eastport. Commercial lobstermen live in every island and coastal town in our state,
and this way of life is integrated into the fabric of the Maine coast — providing a firm economic
and cultural foundation to our towns and harbors. Not only does lobstering provide a future for
fishing families in our coastal towns, but lobster is also our state’s top fishery. It contributes
more than 51 billion to the state’s economy each year, and it has fueled tourism and economic
growth for generations. Its loss in our coastal communities, would have a huge economic ripple

Item 13



effect that goes far beyond our coastline and would negatively impact other businesses such as
hotels, restaurants, automobile dealerships, and local banks.

As Maine’s oldest and largest lobster trade association, MLA is best positioned to fight back and
win, but we are battling national organizations with deep pockets and political muscle. We
recently filed our latest briefs, and we are confident that we have hired the best legal team, but
the bills are enormous.

We are not willing to surrender our livelihoods and our communities because we can’t afford to
pay the legal bills.

Today, we ask that the Kennebunkport community consider making a significant contribution
to support MLA’s Legal Defense Fund to Save Maine Lobstermen.

Maine lobstermen care about protecting the endangered whale, and in fact, we have a long and
successful record of implementing an array of gear changes to keep the waters off our coast
safe for these whales. These measures have worked. The last known entanglement in Maine
lobster gear happened 18 years ago. In fact, there has never been a known right whale death in
Maine lobster gear.

Yet despite our excellent track record, the federal government recently closed nearly one
thousand square miles of prime fishing bottom to Maine lobstermen for one-third of the year,
and Maine lobstermen will be removing more rope, and further weakening our remaining buoy
lines later this spring. In addition, our federal waters lobstermen will be adding additional
marks to all their buoy lines.

This lawsuit is a monumental task for a small organization like the MLA. But we know that NOW
is the time to double down on our efforts to ensure our industry remains strong. Our court case
is underway, and we simply can’t let the federal government’s ten-year whale plan erase
Maine’s lobstering heritage.

We're asking those who understand its economic importance and care about this culture to
stand with us, because we believe Maine lobster is an industry worth fighting to save.

To learn more about our Save Maine Lobstermen campaign, please visit
www.savemainelobstermen.org or contact Kevin Kelley, MLA Director of Advancement at
207-967-4555, or email kevin@mainelobstermen.org with any questions.

Thank you. With your community’s help and generosity, we can Save Maine Lobstermen.

% [h>nts Kor 3 Gou

Kevin Kelley Oon 4o,

Director of Advancement



o e BT e e
y RENR Y P

Burdensome Federal

Regulations Threaten

to End Maine’s Lobster
Industry

New federal rules intended to protect the North Atlantic right whale have set a
course to eliminate the Maine lobster fishery and end Maine’s lobstering tradition.

The plan WI" end Join the Fight to Save Maine Lobstermen
t h & M alnhe IObSte Y Fighting the federal government and solving

complex environmental problems takes

fiShery b“t Won’t resources. We must raise $10 million over the
save rig ht whales next three years to lead this fight.

The Maine Lobstermen’s Association What will the fundin support?

(MLA) is fighting back! We are putting its - T
65 years of experience as the leader of the Funding will directly support legal efforts to

world’s most sustainable fishery to work challenge flawed federal regulations through

to find a solution that will protect right lawsuits, regulatory processes, development of

whales AND Maine’s lobstering heritage. innovative gear solutions, and education to save
Maine lobstermen AND right whales.

Join The Fight Today!

SaveMaineLobstermen.org

mainclobstermen.org




The Issue:

I

In 2021, the National Marine Fisheries Services (NMFS)
released a 10-year whale plan that requires the Maine lobster ﬁ
fishery to reduce risk to right whales by 98 percent. This is an
unachievable goal that the lobster industry cannot survive.
Now, the government is threatening to require these deep
cuts even sooner.

The Challenge:

Maine lobstermen are not to blame. There has not been a single known right whale entanglement in Maine
lobster gear in almost 20 years and Maine lobster gear has never been linked to a right whale death.

New research shows that right whales rarely visit the waters where Maine lobstermen fish. Simply put
= the federal government is wrongly holding Maine lobstermen accountable for the decline of the right
whale population.

The Solution:

The MLA is engaged in a four-prong strategy to Save Maine Lobstermen AND right whales.

€ 10l v

Legal and Policy - The MLA is suing the federal government to stop the 10-year whale plan
that will decimate Maine’s lobster industry. MLA has asked the court to fix the plan using
accurate science so that we can save right whales without sacrificing the lobster fishery.

Sclence - MLA is engaging with scientific experts to ensure that the most up to date,
cutting-edge science is the basis of any right whale conservation plan.

Conservation - MLA is working with Maine lobstermen to continue efforts to develop
innovative gear solutions that protect right whales and support the continuation of Maine's
lobstering heritage.

Communlications - MLA is building support to ensure the community understands that
Maine’s lobstering tradition is at risk and may disappear forever, erasing generations of
locally-owned and operated fishing businesses and the economic engine of Maine’s rural
coastal communities.

WE NEED YOUR HELP

TO MAINTAIN A ROBUST LOBSTER INDUSTRY TODAY AND FOR FUTURE GENERATIONS AND THE THOUSANDS

OF FAMILIES THAT RELY ON IT.

eMaine  Jojin The Fight Today!

ermen ]
SaveMaineLobstermen.org

mainelobstermen.org




Loss of Maine’s Lobster Industry Would Have Huge Ripple Effect
February 11, 2022

The loss of just one small business will leave an empty storefront on Main Street and cause a
ripple effect that reverberates far beyond downtown. However, Maine faces an oncoming
tsunami of federal regulations targeting our lobster industry that threaten to wipe out nearly
5,000 independently-owned, small businesses from Kittery to Eastport and in every rural fishing
village in between — leaving a wake of economic destruction behind that will reach far beyond
our coastline.

The scenario sounds implausible, but it’s very real.

Last year, the federal government announced a ten-year plan intended to help protect the
endangered North Atlantic right whale. Under it, Maine lobstermen must implement whale
conservation measures that the government believes will reduce our already minimal risk to the
right whale by 98-percent by the year 2030. Frankly, it is an unachievable goal. Yet, if the
industry does not meet this mandate, it will be illegal for the federal government to continue to
permit the fishery. In other words, Maine’s lobster industry has been stamped with an expiration
date.

What would this mean to Maine and our economy? Lobster is our state’s top fishery,
contributing more than $1 billion to the state’s economy each year. Commercial fishing licenses
are held in every island and coastal town in our state. The loss of the lobster industry in
communities like Stonington, Cutler, and Jonesport would impact businesses that rely on a
strong lobster industry far beyond the working waterfront. The iconic Maine lobster has fueled
tourism and economic growth for generations. So, what would the future look like for the next
generation of Mainers growing up in towns like Vinalhaven, Friendship, and Harpswell if this
way of life ceases to exist?

Make no mistake. Maine lobstermen care about protecting the endangered whale. In fact, we
have implemented an array of gear changes to keep the waters off our coast safe for these
whales. We’ve implemented measures such as removing thousands of miles of rope from the
water, keeping rope off the surface where a whale might feed, putting weak links at the top of
our buoy lines so that a whale can break free, and marking our lines so we know if Maine lobster
gear is responsible for an entanglement.

And these measures have worked. During the course of 20 years, the right whale population
doubled. The last known entanglement in Maine lobster gear happened 18 years ago and that
whale survived. In fact, there has never been a known right whale death in Maine lobster gear.



Yet despite our excellent track record, the federal government recently closed nearly one
thousand square miles of prime fishing bottom to Maine lobstermen for one-third of the year, and
Maine lobstermen will be removing more rope, and further weakening our remaining buoy lines
this spring. And our federal waters lobstermen will also be adding additional marks to all of their
buoy lines.

The Maine Lobstermen’s Association (ML A) believes the industry’s only hope to survive is to
fight. The MLA has filed a lawsuit against National Marine Fisheries Service challenging the
scientific basis of its ten-year whale plan with the goal of reworking risk reductions to match the
risk posed by Maine’s lobster fishery. And since 2018, the ML A has been an intervenor in the
court case filed by environmental groups, which seeks to shut down the lobster fishery.

Suing the federal government is a monumental and unaffordable task for a small organization
like the MLA. But we believe it’s our last, best hope. The government’s plan is wrong and not
based on sound science. We are looking to the court to hold the federal government accountable
and to revise the plan so that it protects whales without eliminating the lobster fishery. We have
launched a campaign, www.savemainelobstermen.org, and are asking for partners in this fight.

It’s almost impossible to imagine Maine without a lobster industry. We need all of you who
understand its importance and care about this heritage to learn more, and to stand with us,
because we believe Maine lobster is an industry worth fighting to save.

About the Author: Patrice McCarron is executive director of the Maine Lobstermen’s Association. To
learn more, please visit www.savemainelobstermen.org.

savemainelobstermen.org




MAINE'S BUSINESS NEW

November 17, 2021

Despite setback in court, lobstering trade group launches $10M campaign to fight
regulations

: G*' H"- &

COURTESY / MAINE LOBSTERMEN'S ASSOCIATION Kristan Porter, a Cutler lobsterman and Maine Lobstermen's
Association president, said lobster fishermen have stepped up to help save the right whale. Looking on is Dustin
Delano, a Friendship lobsterman and vice president of the association.

By Staff

A clash of titans played out Tuesday in the latest round of actions by the nation’s largest lobster fishery and the federal
government.

The Maine Lobstermen’s Association announced the launch of a three-year, $10 million fundraising campaign to fight
what the group says are onerous federal regulations threatening the future of the industry. The announcement came
just hours before the 1st U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in Boston reinstated a seasonal prohibition on lobster fishing in an
area roughly 30 nautical miles off the coast of Maine.

The developments both stem from a plan, issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service on Aug. 31, that aims to
protect the endangered North Atlantic right whale by creating new requirements affecting Maine lobstermen. The plan
includes mandates for additional gear marking and gear modification, as well as a seasonal ban on lobster fishing with
buoy lines across a large swath of the Gulf of Maine.

Industry campaign

The Maine Lobstermen’s Association’s announcement came during a news conference on Widgery Wharf in Portland.

The goal was to call attention to what the association says are disastrous implications of the 10-year plan by the
Fisheries Service, and which will eventually require the Maine lobster fishery to reduce risk to right whales by 98%.

“Itis unthinkable to imagine what would happen to our state and coastal communities if federal regulations force these
boats off the water and end our lobstering heritage,” said Patrice McCarron, the association’s executive director.

Maine’s lobster industry directly supports more than 10,000 jobs and is worth roughly a half billion dollars at the dock
each year, according to a news release. Collectively, the industry contributes $2 billion annually to the state’s economy.



The association said the fundraiser would go toward executing a number of actions.

They began in September, when the group filed a lawsuit against the federal government to stop the plan. Additional
actions include: -

* Working with scientists with the goal of incorporating up-to-date data as the basis of any plan to save the right whale.
* Engaging with lobstermen to continue efforts to develop innovative gear that protects right whales while ensuring the
continuation of the industry.

¢ Communing with the public to promote broader awareness of the issues.

As part of the campaign, the association established a website, SaveMaineLobstermen.org, which includes the proposed
actions in greater detail, as well as opportunities to donate to the cause or get involved.

The association said the Fisheries Service’s 98% risk-reduction target is an unachievable goal, won't save the right
whales, and will decimate the industry.

“This is not a choice between saving the right whale or saving the Maine lobster industry. We can do both,” said Kristan
Porter, a Cutler lobsterman and the association’s president.

“Lobstermen have been honest brokers and stepped up every time the federal government has required new whale
conservation measures because we care deeply about the livelihood of our fishery and the whales.”

Restricted area

An October-through-January lobster fishing ban across 967 square miles of offshore waters in the Gulf of Maine was due
to go into effect in October.

Then, with just two days to spare, the industry won an emergency motion to stop the closure, when U.S. District Judge
Lance Walker issued a temporary restraining order blocking the ban.

But now the 1st Circuit Court has reinstated the closure, after an emergency motion was filed by environmental groups
Center for Biological Diversity, Conservation Law Foundation and Defenders of Wildlife.

The Fisheries Service implemented the prohibition to protect North Atlantic right whales from entanglements in lobster
gear.

The 1st Circuit Court ruling said that the lower court “misapprehended the record and overstepped its role in rejecting
the judgment of the agency that Congress has charged with protecting endangered marine mammals.”

The ruling noted that “while there are serious stakes on both sides, Congress has placed its thumb on the scale for the
whales.”

“Reducing entanglements by prohibiting fishing in this area is critical to ensuring the survival of right whales,” Erica
Fuller, a senior attorney at Conservation Law Foundation, said in a separate news release.

“The First Circuit got it right: entanglements often can’t be traced, so where whales, lots of lines, and heavy fishing lines
coincide, we need fishing restrictions now.”

The order means the closure will now go into effect as intended while the preliminary injunction appeal is heard by the
appellate court.

The North Atlantic right whale population dropped to 336 individuals in 2020 — an 8% decline from 2019 and the lowest
population number for the species in nearly 20 years.



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 14

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen
From; Laurie Smith, Town Manager
Denise Brown, Finance Director

Date:  April 11, 2022

Re; Request to accept Payment on Foreclosed property at 133 Main St
and issue a Quitclaim

On January 10, 2022, the Town of Kennebunkport foreclosed on the property located at 133
Main Street, owned by Lisa Gunther. After many attempts to reach the property owner, whom
we had heard was living abroad, we were contacted by her sister. Joyce Gunther, who lives in
New Zealand, informed us that Lisa Gunther passed away in South Africa, bequeathing her
estate/house to her sister and brother.

Joyce Gunther is requesting to pay all the taxes on this property.

Foreclosure laws rule that all taxes must be paid in full, and if done after April 1, an estimate of
the new year taxes must also be added.

Attached to this memo is an account of what is owed to process a Quitclaim on this property.

We are seeking approval from the Selectmen to proceed with accepting payment via an
international bank wire and to process a Quitclaim on this property.

Page1of1l



KENNEBUNKPORT RE Account 1198 Detail 04/11/2022
8:36 AM asof 04/11/2022 Page 1
Name: GUNTHER, LISA C Land: 111,500
Building: 149,400
Location: 133 MAIN STREET Exempt 21,000
Acreage: 0.35 Map/Lot: 022-003-009 Total: ’239,900
Book Page: B17911P0337
Refl: BP
2022-1 Period Due: Mailing 133 MAIN STREET
1) 1,190.17 Address: KENNEBUNKPORT ME 04046
2) 1,151.52
Year/Rec # Date Reference PC Principal Interest Costs Total
2022-1 R 2,303.04 38.65 0.00 2,341.69
2021-1L * 2,252.88 150.45 47.96 2,451.29
2020-1 L * 2,282.18 480.01 71,23 2,833.42
2019-1 R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2018-1 L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2017-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2016-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2015-1 L # 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2014-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2013-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2012-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2011-1R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2010-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2009-1L * 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Account Totals as of 04/11/2022 6,838.10 669.11 119,19 7,626.40
0 RE Tox e o)
$9320
Per Diem Exempt Codes: 01 - Homestead Exempt
2022-1 0.3155
2021-1 0.3086
2020-1 __ 0.5627 Note: Payments will be reflected as positive
Total 1.1868 values and charges to the account will be

represented as negative values.



